
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE AGENDA 

 

Town Hall Council Chambers  January 22, 2018 at 7:00pm  

30 South Main Street  Town Council Monthly Meeting  

Weaverville, N.C. 28787 

 

 

1. Call to Order ............................................................................................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

   

2. Public Hearing: Code Amendments regarding Food Trucks CANCELLED .............................................. Mayor Root 

   

3. Public Hearing: Proposed Zoning Map Amendment for Weaverville Condos ..................................... Town Planner 

   

4. Approval / Adjustments to the Agenda ...................................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

   

5. Community and/or Employee Recognition .............................................................................................................. 

A.     Introduction of new Public Works Director and Police Chief      

Town Manager 

   

6. Approval of Minutes .............................................................................................................................................................. 

A. December 12, 2017 Town Council Workshop Minutes 

B. December 18, 2017 Town Council Minutes 

Mayor Root 

 

   

7. Consent Agenda  

 A. Monthly Tax Report .......................................................................................................................................................  Finance Officer 

 B. Tax Refunds & Releases ............................................................................................................................................... Finance Officer 

 C. Set Public Hearing on Zoning Text Amendment on Initial Consideration by Town Council .......... Town Planner 

 D. Final Plat Approval: Greenwood Park Phase I .................................................................................................... Town Planner 

 E. Final Plat Approval: The Hamlet, Phase I – Portion of Reems Creek Village ......................................... Town Planner 

    

8. General Public Comments  

    

9. Discussion & Action Items: 

 A. Action regarding Proposed Zoning Map Amendment: Weaverville Condos ......................................... Town Planner 

 B. Planning Department Report ..................................................................................................................................... Town Planner 

 C. Finance Departmental Report .................................................................................................................................... Finance Officer 

 D. Budget Amendment ........................................................................................................................................................ Finance Officer 

 E. Waterline Extension & Allocation Request: Weaverville Condos .............................................................. Public Works Director 

 F. Authorization to Execute Consulting Agreement with Withers-Ravenel-Martin ................................ Town Manager 

    

10. Town Manager's Report ...................................................................................................................................................... Town Manager 

   

11. Closed Session ........................................................................................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

 1. N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(3) To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public 

body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public 

body 

2. N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11(a)(5) To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or negotiating 

agents concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body... 

 

   

12. Adjournment ........................................................................................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

   

 

1



Notice of Public Hearing Cancellation 

This notice is to inform the public that a public hearing before Town Council related to a proposed 
amendment to the zoning code regarding additional standards placed upon mobile food vendors 
scheduled for Monday, January 22, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. within Council Chambers at Town Hall, has 
been CANCELLED. 

This notice is for your information only and no response or action is required. If you would like 
additional information you may contact Planning Director and Deputy Town Clerk James Eller at 
828-484-7002 or jeller@weavervillenc.org.

___________________________________________________ 
Al Root, Mayor 

2

mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org


TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

PUBLIC HEARING 
MEETING DATE: January 22, 2018 

SUBJECT: Zoning Map Amendment 

PRESENTER:  Town Planner 

ATTACHMENTS: Notice of Public Hearing 
Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation 
Application and Supporting Documentation 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

HFW Endeavors is the owner of three adjacent parcels of land under common ownership 
bearing parcel identification numbers 9733-70-0398, 9733-70-0050, and 9732-79-2660, 
and which are designated as three separate zoning districts (R-3, C-2, and I-1).  The Town 
has received a zoning map amendment application from HFW Endeavors requesting that 
the zoning of the three adjacent parcels of land be changed to R-12. 

On January 2, 2018, the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the application for 
zoning map amendment and voted to forward a favorable recommendation on an R-12 
zoning designation for the three parcels. 

This public hearing has been scheduled pursuant to Town Code and state statute to provide 
an opportunity for the public to provide input on this zoning map amendment. 

3



 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Public Notice is hereby given that the Town of Weaverville Town Council will hold a Public Hearing 
on Monday, January 22, 2017 at 7:00p.m or at such time as Council reaches the issue. This meeting 
will occur within Council Chambers at Town Hall located at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC 
to consider the following item: 
 
Proposed Zoning Map Amendment related to three contiguous parcels of land adjacent to 
Monticello Road known commonly by the parcel identification numbers 9733-70-0398, 9733-70-
0050 and 9732-79-2660. The application calls for the rezoning or each property from I-1, R-3 and 
C-2 respectively to R-12.   
  
If you would like additional information or to review the content related to the Public Hearing you 
may contact Town Planner and Deputy Town Clerk James Eller at 828-484-7002 or 
jeller@weavervillenc.org. 
 
Publication Dates: 1/11/18 and 1/18/18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4

mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org


5



6



7



8



9



10



 

December 12, 2017 
Town Council Workshop Minutes 

 

MINUTES 

Town of Weaverville                    Town Council Workshop 
State of North Carolina          Tuesday, December 12, 2017 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a Town Council Workshop on Tuesday, December 12, 2017, at 
5:30 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council Members present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman John Penley, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill and 
Councilman Andrew Nagle. Councilman Doug Jackson and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons were absent.  
 
Staff present was: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, Town 
Planner James Eller, and Finance Officer Tonya Dozier.  
 
1. Call to Order  

Mayor Al Root called the workshop to order at 5:36pm. 
 

2. Town Council Meetings Date and Schedule 
Mayor Al Root mentioned that regular Town Council meetings are usually on the 3rd Monday of each month except 
for the first two months of the year because of holidays. He doesn’t have an issue with the meeting dates, but 
recommends changing the time of the meetings back to 7 pm. Mayor Root believes scheduling the meetings later will 
be more convenient for the Town of Weaverville citizens.  
 
Councilman Nagle made a motion to change the time of the regular Town Council meetings to 7 pm. Councilwoman 
Sherrill seconded and all voted in favor of the motion.  
   

3. Town Council Workshops Date and Schedule 
Mayor Al Root mentioned that Town Council workshops are usually on the 2nd Tuesday of each odd numbered month 
at 5:30 pm. He recommends keeping the dates of the workshops the same, but changing the time of them and asked 
Council what time they thought was best. 
 
Councilman Nagle mentioned that it is usually hard for him to make the meetings since he gets off at 6 pm, so it might 
be more convenient for the community if the times were later in the evening around 6:30 pm.  
 
Councilwoman Sherrill commented that she didn’t have an issue moving the time of the meeting to 6:30 pm, but 
would like to make sure the meetings stay on organized and on schedule.  
 
Councilman Penley suggested changing the workshop time to 6 pm, since most people are usual getting off work 
around 5 pm.  
 
Mayor Root mentioned that Town Council could change the workshop times to 6 pm at first and see if it is more 
convenient for the citizens of the Town, and then determine if it needs to be changed again.   
 
Councilman Nagle made a motion to change the time of the Town Council workshops to 6 pm. Councilwoman Sherrill 
seconded and all voted in favor of the motion.  
 

11



 

December 12, 2017 
Town Council Workshop Minutes 

Mayor Root also mentioned that the workshops would be held in the Council Chambers at Town Hall and not the Fire 
Department.  
 

4. Discussion/ Questions 
Mayor Al Root discussed that Town Council used to do a retreat every year, which he thought was a great idea and 
suggests that Council bring it back. He doesn’t believe that one day with Town Council by themselves will get the job 
done and asked Town Manager Selena Coffey to get together some dates throughout the year that will work for 
Council.  
 
Councilman Nagle believes that having retreats will help Town Council establish a vision for the Town of 
Weaverville and keep on track with it. He thinks this will be very beneficial to new Council members in the future. 
 
Councilman Penley commented on when the retreats would begin and whether they would be run internally or if an 
outside individual would run these retreats.   
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey commented that the strategic plans need to be dynamic, so that when new member 
come on board, it can be updated annually. She believes that it would be beneficial to hire someone externally to 
facilitate the retreats. 
 
Mayor Al Root also commented on the budget process and wondered how staff planned to go through it. He informed 
staff that he likes to ask questions during the budget process to help educate him, so he doesn’t want them to feel 
insulted.  
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey commented that she prefers to observe and analyze all the information before making 
any changes. However, this year she would like to implement into the departments some outcome based and 
performance based budgeting, work input and output methods, and gather more qualitative information that helps the 
community. Our department heads will see different formats for their requests, but she doesn’t want it to be real labor 
intensive. She also wants to try and introduce some measures to show how the money is being spent and what 
spending the money on will improve. 
 

5. Review and Next Steps 
In review, Town Council agreed to change the meeting times for the regular Town Council meetings to 7 pm and the 
Town Council workshops to 6pm. Town Council recommended that the next steps will be for Town Manager and 
staff to figure out some open dates this year for Council to have a retreat.   
 

6. Adjournment. 
Councilwoman Sherrill made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Penley seconded and all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 6:06 p.m. 

 

 

__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

  

12



 

 
Page 1 of 4  December 18, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

                  

                   MINUTES 

 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Regular Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, December 18, 2017 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, December 18, 2017, at 
6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, Councilman 
Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons. Vice Mayor/Councilman John Penley was absent. 

Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, 
Police Chief Greg Stephens, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier and 
Public Works Director Tony Laughter. 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Root called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Mayor Root made an adjustment on the Agenda to move item 9A, recognizing the Christmas Parade Float 
Winners to earlier in the meeting.  
 
Councilwoman Sherrill made a motion to approve the agenda with the aforementioned revision. Councilman 
Jackson seconded and all voted in favor of the motion.  
 

3. Christmas Parade Float Winners 
Mayor Al Root recognized the Christmas Parade Float Winners. Top three places were given a trophy after the 
Christmas Parade.      First Place – Flat Creek Baptist Church;    Second Place – Rodney’s Auto Service;             
Third Place – Richland Baptist Church 
 

4. Approval of Minutes 
Councilman Fitzsimmons made the motion to approve the minutes from November 20, 2017 Regular Scheduled 
Town Council Meeting as presented. Councilwoman Sherrill seconded the motion and all voted in favor on the 
approval of the minutes. 
 

5. Consent Agenda 
Councilman Nagle moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Councilwoman Sherrill seconded the motion 
and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda.  
 
A. Monthly Tax Report – Information Only 
B. Awarding of Service Firearm and Badge to Retiring Police Chief Stephens – Upon payment of $1.00 

(provided by Councilman Jackson), Police Chief Greg Stevens was awarded his badge and service firearm. 

13



 

 
Page 2 of 4  December 18, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

C. Initial Consideration & Setting Public Hearing for Code Amendments: Food Trucks – Setting Public 
Hearing for January 22, 2018 at 7 pm. 

D. Initial Consideration & Setting Public Hearing for Zoning Map Amendments: Weaverville Condos 
(Behind Walmart) – Setting Public Hearing for January 22, 2018 at 7 pm.  

 
6. General Public Comments: 

Public comments were received as follows: 
 
Earl Valois, 42 Loftin St., commented that he attended the workshop last week and believes Town Manager 
Selena Coffey’s idea of going to a performance based management systems is wonderful. He has had experience 
in benchmarking and it is a good program, especially after several years of data is collected. 
 

7. Public Hearing: Amendments to Code Section 25-83 
Councilman Jackson made the motion to enter into Public Hearing; Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted in 
favor of opening the Public Hearing. 
 
Town Planner James Eller mentioned that on November 7th staff relayed to the Planning and Zoning Board some 
minor revisions to language related to the Certificate of Ownership and Dedication on final plats for major 
subdivisions. These dedications are necessary to be recorded on the final plat of major subdivisions in order for 
the jurisdiction to obtain certain infrastructure from the developer once it is ensured that the infrastructure has 
been built to a specific and satisfactory standard. Transitioning from “Certificate of Ownership and Dedication” to 
a “Certificate of Ownership and Offer of Dedication” could, perhaps, give an individual not well versed in North 
Carolina land use law a reservation that, even though shown on the approved final plat of a major subdivision, the 
infrastructure is not public. The governing board of the jurisdiction must follow the dedication with an acceptance 
in order for the infrastructure to become public. 
 
Town Planner James Eller noted that the Public Hearing notice was ran in the Asheville Citizen Times on 
December 7, 2017 and December 14, 2017. 
 
Councilwoman Sherrill made the motion to close the Public Hearing; Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded and all 
voted in favor of closing the Public Hearing. 
 

8. Discussion and Action Items 
A. Action on Amendments to Code of Ordinances Sections 25-83 

Mayor Al Root asked Council what action they would like to take, since they just heard the Public Hearing 
and there is an Ordinance drafted. 
 
Councilman Jackson made a motion to approve these amendments through the adoption the Ordinance 
amending Weaverville Town Code Section 25-83. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion 
passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 
 

B. FY 2017 Audit Presentation 
Finance Director Tonya Dozier gave an overview on the North Carolina Financial Conditional Analysis 
before discussing the FY 2017 Audit. The analysis includes the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund, and 
covers categories such as: dependency, liquidity, solvency, and leverage. This analysis is attached. Ms. Dozier 
then introduced Travis Keever of Gould Killian. Mr. Keever went through a power point presentation 
concerning the audit findings. The audit report was distributed.  
 

14



 

 
Page 3 of 4  December 18, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

C. Public Works & Water Departmental Report 
Public Works Director Tony Laughter discussed the Public Works and Water Departments Quarterly Report 
for September, October and November. The report is attached below.  
 

D. Waterline Acceptance: Greenwood Phase I & II 
 

Public Works Director Tony Laughter discussed that the Greenwood Park LLC project has progressed with 
the installation of the water lines that will serve both Phase I and Phase II of Greenwood Park and those lines 
are ready to be accepted into the Town’s water system. He is requesting that Town Council accept the 
waterline extension and related improvements into the Town’s water system subject to stall level approval by 
Public Works Director, Town Manager and Town Attorney. Public Works Director Laughter urges Town 
Council to set an improvement defects guaranty at $5,000 to cover any defects that might be discovered 
within three years of our acceptance. 
 

E. Waterline Acceptance: Maple Trace Phase III 
Public Works Director Tony Laughter discussed that the Windsor Built Homes, Inc. is in the process of 
developing a subdivision outside of Town limits known as Maple Trace. They have completed the water 
infrastructure for Phase III and those lines are ready to be accepted into the Town’s water system. He is 
requesting that Town Council accept the waterline extension and related improvements into the Town’s water 
system subject to stall level approval by Public Works Director, Town Manager and Town Attorney. Public 
Works Director Laughter urges Town Council to set an improvement defects guaranty at $5,000 to cover any 
defects that might be discovered within three years of our acceptance. 
 

F. Waterline Acceptance: Water Pointe 
Public Works Director Tony Laughter discussed that Mayfair Partners, LLC is in the process of developing a 
14-lot single family home unified housing development that will be known as Water Pointe. The development 
included the installation of the water lines that will serve all of the lots within Water Pointe and those lines are 
ready to be accepted into the Town’s water system. He is requesting that Town Council accept the waterline 
extension and related improvements into the Town’s water system subject to stall level approval by Public 
Works Director, Town Manager and Town Attorney. Public Works Director Laughter urges Town Council to 
set an improvement defects guaranty at $3,000 to cover any defects that might be discovered within three 
years of our acceptance. 
 
Councilman Nagle made a motion to accept the waterlines for Greenwood Phase I & II, Maple Trace Phase 
III, and Water Pointe subject to staff level approval, and set defect guarantees as followed: $5,000 for 
Greenwood Phase I & II, $5,000 for Maple Trace Phase III and $3,000 for Water Pointe . Councilman 
Jackson seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 
 

G. Water Allocation Request: Hawthorne Apt. Complex Called North Point 
The Town has received a waterline extension and allocation request for a 240 unit apartment complex that is 
contemplated for property fronting on Ollie Weaver Road which is just outside municipal limits. The 
allocation requested is 72,000 gallons per day with a peak demand of 230 gallons per minute. Public Works 
Director Tony Laughter discussed this request and indicated that water plants are built to produce and sell 
water and that the water plant could handle this allocation while still reserving enough capacity for infill 
within municipal boundaries. Marvin Mercer was in attendance as a representative of the potential owner and 
answered questions about the project. Doug Theroux was allowed to provide a citizen comment which was 
that he thinks slower growth is advisable. Town Council also expressed concerns about rapid growth and 
indicated that it was inclined to deny the application. The application was withdrawn by the applicant.  

15



 

 
Page 4 of 4  December 18, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

H. Amendments to FY 2018 Fee Schedule 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that Town Council adopted a fee schedule on June 19, 2017, as part 
of the budget ordinance. The vendor that provides electronic payment options was unexpectedly slow in 
processing the contract that allowed for the lowering of processing fees for electronic payments. The fees that 
are reflected in the fee schedule adopted on June 19th are not correct, as of November 30, 2017. However, the 
fees from July 1st through November 29th were a bit higher. Town Manager Selena Coffey recommends that a 
revision be made to the fee schedule that the processing fees for electronic payments prior to November 30, 
2017 were pursuant to a convenience fee schedule adopted by ACI Worldwide and 
www.officialpayments.com. This revision has been added to the cover page as well. 
  
Councilwoman Sherrill made a motion to adopt the Ordinance amending the Town’s Fee Schedule. 
Councilman Jackson seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 
 

9. Town Manager’s Report 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her manager’s report to Council including the Lake Louise Community 
Center has been demolished, recognized Laura Ayers for her help in answering questions on social media, the 
PARTF grant application process will begin after the holidays, Parks and Recreation Input Session February 6 
from 4-6pm; February 28 6-7:30 pm -Special Called Meeting for a presentation by Joe Minnicozzi; workshops 
now at 6 pm in Town Hall and regular council meetings at 7 pm; website designer is finishing up so that the new 
site will be completed soon. 
 
Mayor Root thanked Councilman Fitzsimmons for scheduling the event on February 27 
 

10. Community and/or Employee Recognition 
A. Police Chief Greg Stephens – Retirement 
B. Public Works Director Tony Laughter – Retirement 

 
11. Adjournment 

Councilwoman Sherrill made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded and all voted to adjourn 
the Council’s meeting at 7:40 p.m. 

 

 
    ______________________________________________ 

  Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

16



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2018   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:   Town Finance Officer 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of January 16, 2018. 
This report is provided for information only. No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

17



18



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2018   

SUBJECT: Tax Releases and Refunds 

PRESENTER:   Town Finance Officer 

ATTACHMENTS: Supporting Documentation 
 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

One of the properties under the Reems Creek Cottages Homeowners Association (PIN 
9742-54-5031) was deemed unbuildable due to a water retention pond resulting in a 
decrease in valuation of $132,700. The Town is asked to release $132,700 in value from the 
2017 tax year, which is a $504.26 reduction in the Town’s levy. This tax has not yet been 
paid so there is not a corresponding refund request. 

The Reems Creek Cottage Homeowners Association property that used to contain the sale 
office (PIN 9742-54-3186) was deemed unbuildable due the size rendering it a sub-
standard lot. Buncombe County decrease the valuation of by  $42,800. The Town is asked to 
release $42,800 in value from the 2017 tax year, which is a $162.64 reduction in the 
Town’s levy. This tax has not yet been paid so there is not a corresponding refund request. 

Orville Edward Henderson and Barbara Kay Henderson own property at 46 Loftin Street 
bearing PIN 9732-93-4823. They have qualified for an exemption of $45,000 in value. The 
Town’s tax levy corresponding to the approved exemption is $171.00. The taxes on this 
property have already been paid so a refund in the amount of $171.00 is also requested. 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is requested to approved the above-described releases and refunds. This 
action could be in the form of the following motion:  

I move to approve the following: (1) the release of $132,700 in valuation from 
the Reems Creek Cottage property identified as PIN 9742-54-5031 for 2017, so 
that $504.26 can be released from the 2017 levy; (2) the release of $42,800 in 
valuation from the Reems Creek Cottage property identified as PIN 9742-54-
3186 so that $162.64 can be release from the 2017 levy; and (3) the release of 
$45,000 in valuation from the Henderson property identified as PIN 9732-93-
4823 so that $171.00 can be released from the 2017 levy and refunded to the 
Hendersons. 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter: 

Attachments: 

Monday, January 22, 2018 

Setting a Public Hearing for February 26, 2018 at 7pm on a 
Proposed Amendment of Code Related Initial Town Council 
Review of a Proposed Zoning Map and Text Amendments  

Planning Director 

Chapter 36-358, Initial Review by Town Council 

Description: 

On Tuesday, January 2, 2018 The Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and recommended 
to Town Council a proposed revision of Code which calls for certain zoning map 
amendments to be initiated at the Planning Board level. Such amendments would only be 
applicable to a proposed change between two standard zoning districts such as R-1, R-2, R-
3, R-12, C-1, C-2 and I-1. 

Due to the scope and complexities of Conditional Zoning Districts and text amendments, 
Town Council would retain the initial consideration under this proposal in order to give 
direction to staff, the Planning and Zoning Board and the applicant.  

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the setting of a public hearing before Town Council for the aforementioned 
revision of Code for February 26, 2018 at 7pm. 

27



28



Current 

Sec. 36-358. - Initial review by the town council.  

After its initial consideration of the application, the town council shall refer the request to the planning 
board for the full review process.  

Proposed 

Sec. 36-358. – Initial review by town council. 

After its initial consideration of the an application for a conditional zoning district or zoning text 
amendment, town council shall refer the request to the planning board for the full review process as 
required by state statute. Initial considerations of such applications are intended to provide town council 
the opportunity to express their preliminary thoughts related to the applications but shall not serve as a 
final determination on same. 

 

Map amendments which propose a change between two standard zoning districts are not required to go 
before town council prior to being considered by the Planning and Zoning Board. Such an application for 
a map amendment may be subject to an initial review by town council at the request of the applicant. 

 

         

29



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, January 22, 2018 

Subject: Major Subdivision Final Plat for Greenwood Park Phase 1 

Presenter:   Planning Director 

Attachments: Final Plat, Recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board, 
Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions, Sewer Easement 
Plat, Engineering Report Reflective of Al Dorf Drive 

Description: 

The attached Major Subdivision Final Plat for Greenwood Park Phase 1 has been reviewed 
by the Fire Marshall, Public Works Director and Planning Director and been found to 
comply with the Town’s subdivision ordinance as it relates to major subdivisions and other 
sections of code which are applicable. Same has been reviewed by the Planning and Zoning 
Board and unanimously recommended for your consideration after three months of 
deliberations. As subdivision review and approval is an administrative action, no Public 
Hearing is required.  

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the approval of the final plat for Greenwood Park Phase 1. 

 

 

30



31



32



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA                COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS, EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS GOVERNING GREENWOOD 
PARK SUBDIVISION IN BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

 THIS DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS, EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS, made and 
entered into this the ________________ day of                                                    , by and between GREENWOOD PARK, LLC, a North 
Carolina limited liability company, hereinafter referred to as "Declarant", and the future owners of Lots within the Greenwood Park 
subdivision, a planned community located off Reems Creek Road, Buncombe County, North Carolina. 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Declarant is the owner of a tract(s) of land described in deed recorded in Deed Book 4752, at Page 626 and Deed Book 
4752 Page 623 of the Buncombe County, North Carolina Register's Office (hereinafter "the Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the Declarant plans to develop on some or all of the Property parcels of land or Lots for a residential community along 
with supporting infrastructure to be locally known as the Greenwood Park Subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, Declarant desires for the benefit of future purchasers of Lots, Parcels or Living Units making up Greenwood Park that 
Greenwood Park shall be developed as a restricted area and used exclusively as hereinafter set forth. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and for the advantage which the Declarant and Future Owners will receive from 
the sale and ownership of restricted land, Declarant and its successors and assigns do hereby covenant and agree with all other 
persons, firms, or corporations now owning or hereafter acquiring any portion of Greenwood Park, for full value received, and the 
landowner covenants and agrees upon acceptance of a deed or deeds of conveyance to any of the Lots, Parcels or Living Units 
making up Greenwood Park  that Greenwood Park  is hereby subjected to the following restrictions as to the use and occupancy 
thereof, running with the land by whomsoever owned, to wit: 

ARTICLE I : PURPOSE; LAND SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS 

The primary purpose of these covenants and restrictions and the foremost consideration in the origin of the same has been the 
creation of a planned community which is aesthetically pleasing, functionally convenient and environmentally-sound; attracting 
residents seeking privacy and security in a beautiful environment; and providing a community which enriches the surrounding 
Reems Creek-Weaverville area.  Subject to the Special Declarant Rights as hereinafter defined, the Declarant submits the land 

33



2 
 

described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference to the covenants, restrictions, easements and 
reservations contained in this Declaration. 

THIS DOCUMENT REGULATES OR PROHIBITS THE DISPLAY OF POLITICAL SIGNS 

ARTICLE II : DEFINITIONS 

The following are terms that shall be considered as defined terms under this Declaration and the same definition shall be applicable 
whether the word is shown as singular or plural, capitalized or not. 

1. "Act" shall mean the North Carolina Planned Community Act, Chapter 47F of the North Carolina General Statutes and 
amendments thereto. 

2. "Annexed Properties" shall mean any tract of land not included within the boundaries of Greenwood Park as described on 
Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference which may be added to the Greenwood Park planned community as 
provided in Article IX below. 

3. "Association" shall mean Greenwood Park Property Owners Association, Inc., a North Carolina non-profit corporation, its 
successors and/or assigns.  The articles of incorporation of the Association are attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein 
by reference. 

4. "Architectural Review Committee" shall mean the Declarant or any committee created pursuant to Article VII hereof.  

5. "Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Association and the Executive Board referred to in the Act. 

6. "Bylaws" shall mean the bylaws of the Association and any amendments thereto.  The original Bylaws of the Association are 
attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by reference.   

7. "Common Elements" or “Common Areas” shall mean those areas (i) expressly designated by the Declarant as "Common 
Elements" or “Common Areas” on recorded plats for the use and enjoyment of all owners of Lots, Parcels or Living Units within 
Greenwood Park; and (ii) described in a Supplemental Declaration filed in the Buncombe County Register of Deeds Office.  Prior to 
the expiration of the Declarant Control Period as provided below, the Declarant shall convey by Special Warranty or Non-Warranty 
deed or by an easement instrument the ownership and/or use of the Common Elements to the Association.  PROVIDED HOWEVER, 
before the recording of the Supplemental Declaration as provided above, the Declarant has the right to remove any portion of the 
property denoted as "Common Elements" or “Common Areas” on a Plat and subject said area to its exclusive control whether for 
future sale and/or to build upon and without the need for any Lot owner approval or Association consent. "Common Elements" or 
“Common Areas” do not include those areas denoted as "Future Development", "Reserves", “Greenwood Park, LLC” or those areas 
not labeled on the plats of record for Greenwood Park.  The term “Common Elements” shall be interchangeable with the term 
“Common Areas”.     

8. "Declarant" shall mean Greenwood Park, LLC, its members, successors or assigns. 

9. "Declarant Control Period" shall mean the time in which Declarant has to exercise certain exclusive rights such as, but not 
limited to, Special Declarant Rights as hereinafter defined. The Declarant Control Period shall be the earlier of (i) twenty-five (25) 
years after the date of the recording of this Declaration, (ii) when all of Greenwood Park  (platted at such times and in such sections 
as determined in Declarant's sole discretion) has been sold or transferred to parties other than a Declarant, or (iii) such earlier time 
as determined in Declarant's sole discretion by the recording of a written instrument in the Buncombe County Registry executed by 
Declarant and expressly terminating the Declarant Control Period.  

10. "Declaration" shall mean this Declaration of Covenants, Restrictions, Easements, Reservations, Terms and Conditions and 
any amendments thereto. 

11. "Future Development" shall mean any parcel of land now or in the future owned by the Declarant or Declarant’s designee 
depicted on Site Plans or other advertising material for Greenwood Park as "Future Development",  "Reserved", or “Greenwood 
Park, LLC” which may or may not be included within Greenwood Park as determined in the Declarant's sole discretion and wherein 
the Declarant reserves the right to impose use restrictions that may be significantly different from those set forth in this Declaration. 

12. "Governmental Entity" shall mean any and all federal, state or local governmental or quasi-governmental agencies, 
bureaus, departments, divisions or regulatory authorities having jurisdiction over any portion of Greenwood Park. 

34



3 
 

13. "Greenwood Park" shall mean that planned community made up of Lots, Parcels, Living Units, Common Elements and 
infrastructure located within the boundaries C attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference and described on future 
recorded plats and Supplemental Declarations executed by the Declarant at such times and in such sections as determined in 
Declarant's sole discretion.  

14. "Limited Common Elements" shall mean a portion of the common elements for the exclusive use of one or more but fewer 
than all of the Lots.  "Limited common elements" shall be designated on plats for Greenwood Park or on other recorded written 
instruments and may include, but not be limited to, shared driveways. 

15. “Living Unit” shall mean residential space occupied by a single family and intended for separate ownership.  Living units can 
include, but are not limited to, townhouses, condominiums or apartments.  

16. "Lot" shall mean a physical portion of Greenwood Park designated with a number on a plat of Greenwood Park, intended 
for separate ownership or occupancy by an Owner.  A Lot designated on a recorded plat of Greenwood Park shall be deemed 
"Improved" when a residence has been completely constructed thereon and an Occupancy Permit has been issued.  All other Lots 
designated on a recorded plat of Greenwood Park shall be deemed "Unimproved".  

17. "Owner" shall mean and refer to the owner or owners as shown by the real estate records in the Office of the Register of 
Deeds of Buncombe County, North Carolina, of fee simple title to any Lot, Parcel or Living Unit situated within Greenwood Park.  The 
foregoing does not include persons or entities that hold an interest in any Lot merely as security for the performance of an 
obligation. 

18. “Parcel” shall mean any physical portion of Greenwood Park that is surveyed and affixed with a separate tax identification 
number by the Buncombe County Register of Deeds which is not necessarily intended to be subdivided into traditional lots.  
Examples of Parcels would include, without limitation, property on which apartments or commercial uses are located. 

19. "Plat" shall mean any existing or future plat of Greenwood Park signed by the Declarant and placed of record in the 
Buncombe County, N.C. Register's Office, together with all amendments thereto, as approved by the governmental entity, if any, 
having authority to regulate subdivisions. 

20. "Reasonable attorneys’ fees" shall mean attorneys' fee as allowed by the Act. 

21. "Single Family" shall mean a group of one or more persons each related to the other by blood, marriage or legal adoption or 
having a guardian/ward relationship created by decree of a Court of competent jurisdiction, or a group of not more than three 
persons not all so related, who maintain a common household in a dwelling. 

22. "Single-Family Residence" shall mean a dwelling constructed in accordance with the restrictions and conditions set forth in 
Article VI hereof.  

23.  "Single-Family Residential Use" shall mean the occupation or use of a Single-Family Residence in conformity with this 
Declaration.   Buildings designed by the Declarant for attached single-family residences, including duplexes, townhouses, patio 
homes, and condominium units, are permitted within Greenwood Park subdivision as single-family residential uses. 

24. "Special Declarant Rights" shall mean rights reserved for the benefit of the Declarant including, but not limited to, the right 
(i) to complete improvements indicated on plats and plans filed with the Declaration or supplemental Declaration; (ii) to add 
properties to Greenwood Park  as provided in Article IX below (iii) to remove properties from Greenwood Park, except for Common 
Elements or Common Areas unless in conformity with the Act as provided in Article IX below; (iv) to maintain sales offices, 
management offices, signs advertising Greenwood Park  and models; (v) to use or grant easements through the Common Elements 
or Common Areas for the purpose of accessing properties or making improvements in Greenwood Park or areas outside Greenwood 
Park, whether or not said areas are added to Greenwood Park and regardless of the use of said areas; (vi) to use or grant easements, 
without limitation, that are reserved to the Declarant in Article III, Section 4 below; (vii) to make Greenwood Park part of a larger 
planned community or group of planned communities; (viii) to make the planned community subject to a master association;  (ix) to 
appoint or remove any officer or member of the Board of Directors of the Association or any master association during the Declarant 
Control Period; (x) to exercise special voting rights as provided in the Bylaws; (xi) to define or establish the use of any Parcel on any 
Plat; or (xii) any other rights provided Declarant in this Declaration or by North Carolina law, including, but not limited to, the Act. 

25. "Structure" shall mean any building, (including, but not limited to, house, barn, garage), tree house, lampposts, driveway 
lights, fence, wall, swimming pool, tennis court, detached antennae, satellite dishes or other receivers/transmitters, mailboxes, fuel 
tanks, septic systems, dog lots, play sets, and sports equipment or any other thing artificially erected or installed on or under a Lot. 

35



4 
 

 

ARTICLE III: PROPERTY RIGHTS AND EASEMENTS 

Section 1. Owner's Easements of Enjoyment to Common Elements.  Subject to the provisions of this Declaration, and the 
rules and regulations established by the Board, every Owner of a Lot shall have a permanent and perpetual right and easement of 
enjoyment in and to the Common Elements, existing now or in the future, which shall be appurtenant to and shall pass with the title 
to any Lot, subject to: 

(a) the right of the Board to convey any Common Element or subject same to a security interest with a concurring vote of 80% 
of the members of the Association; 

(b) the right of the Board to lease or grant easements or licenses of use over the Common Elements without a vote of the 
members of the Association;  

(c) the right of the Board to dedicate any road and utility rights of way within Greenwood Park to any Governmental Entity or 
public utility without a vote of the membership of the Association; 

(d) the right of the Board, after an opportunity for a hearing as provided in the Act, to suspend the use of the Common 
Elements (except for access to a Lot) by an Owner, his/her tenant or their invitees for any period during which any assessment 
against his/her Lot remains unpaid or for any infraction of the use restrictions contained in this Declaration or the rules and 
regulations promulgated by the Board; 

(e) the right of the Board to reasonably regulate, locate, and direct access routes and to designate parking locations;  

(f) the right of Declarant, as determined in the Declarant's sole discretion, to grant and reserve unto itself, its successors 
and/or assigns the right of access for road and utility purposes over or under the Common Elements, Lots or Parcels owned by 
Declarant to any parcel of land, whether located within or outside Greenwood Park planned community, whether owned or not 
owned by the Declarant and regardless of the use of the beneficial parcel; and 

(g) the right of Declarant to add additional properties to be subject to this Declaration and to allow the owners of those 
properties to become members of the Association. 

Section 2. Easements to Government Entities. Subject to the provisions of this Declaration, Declarant does hereby grant a 
permanent, perpetual and non-exclusive easement to each department, branch or agency of any Governmental Entity, and to any 
agents or employees of said Governmental Entity, over, across and through all roads within Greenwood Park, now or in the future, 
for the purpose of performing such duties and activities as may be necessary or desirable for the common welfare of all owners or 
for the Association which may include, but are not limited to, duties and activities related to law enforcement, fire protection, 
garbage collection, mail delivery and medical and emergency services. 

Section 3. Easements to Utilities.   Subject to the provisions of this Declaration, Declarant does grant to the Association, Duke 
Energy, Verizon, PSNC Energy, Charter Communications and to any other utilities designated by the Declarant, and their successors 
and/or assigns, a permanent, perpetual and non-exclusive easement over, across, under and through: 

(a) all Common Elements; 
(b) 10 feet inside the boundaries of all Lots; and  
(c) as shown on the Plat  
now or in the future, for the purpose of installing, replacing, constructing, maintaining, and operating utilities or utility systems 
which are necessary or desirable for the use of any part of Greenwood Park which include, but are not limited to, publicly or 
privately owned and operated electrical service, communication service, water service, sewer service, gas service, cable television, 
drainage systems, pipes, lines, conduits, storage  devices, equipment, machinery or other devices necessary to the provision of such 
utility services.  The easements established, reserved and granted herein shall include the right, where reasonably necessary, to cut 
and remove trees and other vegetation, to dig, excavate fill and take any other action necessary to provide for the installation, 
maintenance, replacement, relocation or operation of any utility service. 

Provided, however, that the easements herein granted or reserved shall not cause any undue interference with the use or 
occupancy of any Lot or Common Element and further, that Declarant and/or the Association shall use good faith efforts to attempt 
to cause any utility provider, utilizing this easement, to repair any damage caused by such utility. 

Section 4. Easements Reserved to Declarant.  

36



5 
 

(a)  Easements for Access.  Declarant reserves to itself, its successors and/or assigns, a perpetual alienable right to provide 
access over and across the roads and other Common Elements, if any, or across any Lot owned by Declarant to any parcels of land, 
whether within or outside Greenwood Park, whether owned or not owned by Declarant and regardless of the use of the beneficial 
parcel. 

  (b) Easements for Utilities.  The Declarant reserves to itself, its successors and/or assigns the utility easements referred to in 
Section 3 above and Declarant, in its sole discretion, may make such utility easements appurtenant to any parcel of land whether 
within or outside Greenwood Park, whether owned or not owned by Declarant and regardless of the use of the beneficial parcel. 

(c) Easements for Storm water and Drainage.  Declarant, its successors and/or assigns, may cut drain ways or utilize existing 
natural drain ways for surface or storm water wherever and whenever such action may appear to Declarant to be necessary in order 
to maintain proper drainage and reasonable standards of health, safety and appearance.  Declarant, in its sole discretion, may make 
such utility easements appurtenant to any parcel of land whether within or outside Greenwood Park, whether owned or not owned 
by Declarant and regardless of the use of the beneficial parcel.  

(d) Easements for Vegetative, Pest or Fire Control.  Declarant reserves unto itself, its successors and assigns, a perpetual 
alienable and releasable easement and right on and over and under all areas within Greenwood Park to dispense pesticides and take 
other action which in the opinion of Declarant is necessary or desirable to control insects, vermin and undesirable vegetation.  The 
Declarant reserves the right to cut fire breaks and other activities on, over and under all areas within Greenwood Park which in the 
opinion of Declarant are necessary to control fires.  Declarant, however, is under no duty to take such actions as herein above 
provided. 

(e) Easements for Trails/Bike Paths.  Declarant reserves unto itself, its successors and/or assigns, the right to locate trails and 
bike paths within the property on a Lot making up the required setbacks (imposed by a Governmental Entity or by this Declaration) 
or across any portion of a Common Element, for the development of a trail and/or bike system as a Common Element for the use 
and enjoyment of all Lot owners.  

  

 Easements Appurtenant Upon Transfer of Lot or Common Element 

All easements referred to in this Article III that are reserved unto the Declarant, its successors and/or assigns or the Association shall 
be automatically appurtenant to any Lot or Common Element at the time of transfer of said Lot or Common Element from the 
Declarant, its successors and/or assigns, regardless of whether the deed of conveyance expressly reserves such easements. 

    

ARTICLE IV: ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP AND ASSESSMENTS 

Section 1.  Membership in the Association.  Every Owner of a Lot shall be a member of the Association and bound by this 
Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation of the Association and its Bylaws and rules and regulations as hereafter promulgated.  
Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any Lot. 

Section 2. Powers of the Association. The Association shall have such powers as are enumerated in its Articles of 
Incorporation, its Bylaws or as provided in the Act. 

Section 3.  Creation of the Lien and Personal Obligation Assessments.  Each and every Owner of a Lot by acceptance of a deed 
therefore, whether or not it is so expressed in such deed, is deemed to covenant and agree to pay the Association: (1) annual 
assessments or charges, and (2) special assessments for capital improvements, such assessments to be established and collected as 
hereinafter provided and as stated in the Bylaws. All such annual and special assessments, together with interest, costs and 
reasonable attorney's fees for the collection thereof shall be a charge and lien upon a Lot and its improvements.  The amount owed 
shall be a continuing lien upon the applicable property against which such assessment is made, prior to all other liens except only (i) 
real estate taxes and other governmental assessments or charges against the Lot and (ii) liens and encumbrances recorded before 
the recordation of the Declaration. 

Each such assessment, together with interest, costs, and reasonable attorney's fees for the collection thereof, shall also be a 
personal financial obligation of the person, or persons, who was, or were, the Lot owner or owners at the time when the 
assessments became due.  The personal financial obligation for delinquent assessments shall not pass to successors in title to any 

37



6 
 

such Lot unless expressly assumed by such purchaser: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, the same shall be and remain a charge and lien upon 
any such Lot and improvements until paid or otherwise satisfied except as may herein otherwise be provided. 

Section 4.  Purpose of Assessments.    The assessments levied by the Association shall be used for the purposes in keeping 
with a nonprofit corporation as set forth in the Association's Articles of Incorporation. Specifically, the assessments shall be used to 
promote the health, safety and welfare of the Owners and residents of Greenwood Park  and for the improvements, maintenance 
and repair of the Common Elements, and easements appurtenant thereto, for the protection of the community from pollution or 
erosion; for the enforcement of these covenants; the provision of reserve funds, the employment of attorneys, accountants, and 
other professionals to represent the Association, when necessary, and for payment of local taxes, insurance and special 
governmental assessments on or to the Common Elements together with payment of services, if any, provided to the residents by 
the Association. 

Section 5.  Special Assessments for Capital Improvements.  In addition to the annual assessments authorized above, the 
Association may levy in accordance with its Bylaws, in any fiscal year, a special assessment applicable to that year only for the 
purpose of defraying, in whole or in part, the cost of any acquisition, construction, reconstruction, repair or replacement of a capital 
improvement upon the Common Elements, including, but not limited to, fixtures and personal property (such as road signs) related 
thereto and to pay special governmental assessments.   

Section 6.  Rate of Assessment.  The determination of the total amount of Common Expenses for any given fiscal year of 
the Association shall be within the sole discretion of the Board.  The Board shall allocate assessments for common expenses in such 
amounts to be fixed from year to year and the Board may establish different rates for various general classifications of lots according 
to the use and location of said lots.  It is within the Board's discretion to determine what assessment is warranted in cases where a 
Lot is combined or subdivided. 

Section 7.  Effect of Nonpayment of Assessments. 

(a) Remedies of the Association.  Any assessments which are not paid when due as determined by this Declaration and the 
Board shall be delinquent.  If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date, the assessment shall bear interest 
from the date of the delinquency at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum not to exceed amounts set as a maximum 
monthly amount in Chapter 47F of the North Carolina Statutes or any amendment thereto, and the Association may bring action at 
law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same, or foreclose the lien against his/her property, and interest, costs and 
reasonable attorney's fees of any such action for collection thereof shall be added to the amount of such assessment. Each such 
Owner, by his/her acceptance of a deed to a Lot, hereby expressly vests in the Association, or its agents, the right and power to bring 
all actions against such Owner personally for the collection of such charges and liens as a debt and to enforce the aforesaid charge 
and lien by methods available for the enforcement of such liens.  The available enforcement remedies include, but are not limited 
to, those rights stated under the North Carolina Planned Community Act, Chapter 47F of the North Carolina General Statutes.  The 
lien provided for in this Section shall be in favor of the Association and shall be for the benefit of all members of the Association. The 
Association, acting on behalf of its members, shall have the power to bid in an interest foreclosed at foreclosure sale and to acquire 
and hold, lease, mortgage and convey the same, and to subrogate so much of its right to such liens as may be necessary or 
expedient.  No owner of a Lot may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessments provided for herein by non-use of the 
Common Elements or abandonment of his/her Lot. 

After notice and opportunity to be heard, the Association may restrict the use of Common Elements (not including rights of access to 
Lots) by a Lot owner who is delinquent in paying assessments. 

 (b) Remedies of Declarant.  To the extent that any Lot owner fails to pay his/her assessments relating to the Common 
Elements, then Declarant shall have during the Declarant Control Period, the right, but not the obligation, in addition to the 
Association, to use any of the remedies enumerated above, including filing a lien against the defaulting owner and pursuing the 
enforcement of such lien and other remedies as set forth in the Act.  

The remedies given herein are distinct, cumulative remedies and the exercise of any of them shall not be deemed to exclude the 
rights of Declarant or Association to exercise any or all of the others or those which may be permitted by law or equity.  The failure 
to enforce any rights, restrictions or conditions contained herein, however long continued, shall not be deemed a waiver of this right 
to do so hereafter as to the same breach, or as to a breach occurring prior to or subsequent thereto and shall not bear or affect its 
enforcement. 

38



7 
 

Section 8. Association Responsibility of Maintenance/Repair/Improvement.  The Association and its members shall be 
responsible for the maintenance, repair and improvement of all Common Elements as identified on recorded plats for Greenwood 
Park and in a Supplemental Declaration.   

Section 9. Reserve Funds, Operating Expense Surplus and Surplus Funds. The Board shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, within its sole discretion, to impose assessments on Lot owners for the maintenance of reserve funds or operating 
expense surpluses.  The Association, within its sole discretion, may apply surplus funds to a reserve fund or any purpose of a non-
profit corporation or may credit such funds to its members as provided for in North Carolina General Statutes §47F-3-114.    

Section 10. Architectural Review fees; Impact fees; Cash Bonds.  The Board shall have the right, but not the obligation, within 
its sole discretion, to impose a uniform schedule of fees to be applied to any Owner of a Lot at the time that Owner applies for 
approval to construct a residence on the Lot to offset the costs of architectural review or to mitigate the effect that Owner's 
development plans will have on the infrastructure and environment within Greenwood Park. These fees may take the form of 
Architectural Review fees and/or Impact fees and any such fees may be non-refundable in the sole discretion of the Board.  

Section 11. Usage charges.  The Board shall have the right, but not the obligation, within its sole discretion, to charge usage 
fees to persons other than Lot owners, Lot owners, their guests and invitees for the use of Common Elements to be fixed from year 
to year and the Board may establish different usage fee rates for various general classifications of Lots, Parcels or Living Units 
according to the burden that such properties may place on the Common Elements.   

 

ARTICLE V : COMMON ELEMENTS 

Section 1.  Designation.  During the Declarant Control Period, the Declarant may, but is not obligated to, provide properties 
within Greenwood Park as Common Elements. The designation and transfer of these areas are solely in the discretion of Declarant 
and no parole or oral agreement or claims of estoppels shall be asserted by any resident providing rights to areas not explicitly 
denoted as "Common Elements" or “Common Areas” on the Plats for Greenwood Park and described in this Declaration or in a 
Supplemental Declaration.  Before the Association and its members shall assume the responsibility for maintenance, repair and 
improvement of a Common Element not specifically defined in this Declaration, the Declarant shall record a Supplemental 
Declaration and plat reasonably identifying the Common Element. 

Section 2.   Road Maintenance 

(a) Roadways within Greenwood Park, and as described on Exhibit A, are hereby designated as private roadways and 
designated as common elements of Greenwood Park.  
 
(b)           Upon acquisition of a lot within Greenwood Park each owner will become responsible for that lot’s share of the normal 
upkeep and maintenance. Each owner’s share shall be determined by the proportion of that owner’s platted lots within any given 
classification of lots to the total number of lots per classification platted of record as the same may appear on Exhibit A and any plats 
which might hereafter be filed which would either re-plat or alter in any manner, the lots heretofore platted.  
 
(c)           All matters relating to the private roadways, including without limitation, the assessments to be made for road 
maintenance shall be determined by the Board.  
 

Section 3. Conveyances.  

Any Common Element conveyed by the Declarant to the Association shall be conveyed subject to: 

(a) All restrictions on use contained in this Declaration; 

(b) All existing mortgages, provided, however, that in no event shall the Association be obligated to assume the payment of 
principal or interest on any such mortgage; 

(c) The right of access for ingress, egress and regress, utilities or other easements reserved in this Declaration to the Declarant, 
its successors and/or assigns, over and across such property;  

39



8 
 

(d) The right of the Declarant, its successors and/or assigns, to approve all structures, construction, repairs, changes in 
elevation and topography and the location of any object (including vegetation) within the Common Element prior to the 
commencement of such activities or location of any object therein; and 

(e)  The right of the Declarant or Association to dedicate the maintenance of said Common Element to a Governmental Entity 
with such terms that are required by said Governmental Entity in accepting such dedication. 
 
The recording of a Deed or an Easement instrument from the Declarant to the Association of a Common Element in the Buncombe 
County, NC Register's Office shall be conclusive evidence that the Association has accepted such transfer.  

 

ARTICLE VI: SITE IMPROVEMENT REVIEW AND APPROVAL 

Section 1.  Construction Within Greenwood Park.  Except as provided for the Declarant below, no structure shall be 
commenced, erected or maintained upon any Lot in Greenwood Park; nor shall any exterior addition or exterior change to any 
existing structure occur, nor shall any site work be done until complete final construction plans and specifications showing the 
nature, kind, shape, height, materials, basic exterior finishes and colors, configuration on Lot, location, and floor plan thereof, and 
showing front, side and rear elevations thereof,  have been submitted to and approved in writing by an Architectural Review 
Committee (herein "Committee") as provided in Article II or as appointed by the Board as provided in Article VII below.  Prior to the 
construction or erection of any structure, a site plan to scale must be approved on a topographical map that shows the location of 
the structure, including all drives, walks and parking areas, with each clearly indicated.  A landscaping plan must also be submitted 
and approved by the Committee, also indicating what measures shall be taken to insure the longevity and vitality of any landscaping 
improvements.   

Prior to any physical disturbance of a Lot, special drainage and/or irreplaceable features are to be identified and provisions for their 
protection clearly established.  This includes large and/or specimen trees, rock outcroppings, springs and streams, and 
concentrations of azaleas, rhododendrons, and other shrubs and wild flowers.  Silt fences shall be required prior to any physical 
disturbance.  Culverts needed for ingress or egress shall be provided by the Owner of a Lot and shall be as specified by the 
Committee.  The Owner of a Lot shall insure that all development performed by said owner conforms with all applicable federal, 
state and local laws and regulations. The Committee shall have the right to establish reasonable procedures for the preparation, 
submission, and determination of applications for any structure construction or alteration or landscaping work.  Prior to 
construction, every Lot owner, except the Declarant, shall comply with the erosion control provisions in Article VIII, Section 15 
below.  

Section 2 Declarant Exemption.    Notwithstanding  any other provision in this Declaration to the contrary, during the 
Declarant Control Period, Declarant or any entity in which a Declarant member has an ownership interest, for any Lot owned by 
Declarant or said entity, shall have the right to erect or alter a Structure without the need to submit any plans or obtain the prior 
approval of the Association, Board or Committee and is hereby exempted from any requirement set forth herein of obtaining the 
approval from the Association, Board or the Committee for any development work or paying any fees, including, but not limited to, 
impact fees. 

Section 3.  Approval of Plans, Contractors and Enforcement.  The Committee's refusal or approval of plans, specifications, or 
location of any structure may be based upon any grounds including purely aesthetic considerations which at the sole discretion of 
the Committee, for projects within Greenwood Park, shall be deemed sufficient.  In passing upon construction plans, specification 
plans, or landscaping plans, and without any limitation of the foregoing, the Committee shall have the right to take into 
consideration the suitability of the proposed building or other structure, and of the materials of which it is to be built, the site upon 
which it is proposed to be erected, the harmony thereof with the surroundings and the effect of the building or other structure on 
the appearance from neighboring property.  Notwithstanding that improvements meet or exceed specified minimum size 
requirements; the quality and attractiveness of every structure must also meet high neighborhood standards and the Committee is 
hereby granted broad discretion in judging the compatibility of proposed structures for the neighborhood.  In any case, it is intended 
that the Committee will not approve plans, materials or specifications that do not comply with Sections 4 and 5 below.  

Any contractor or landscaper prior to performing any work within Greenwood Park must be approved by the Board in its sole 
discretion.  No person, firm or entity shall be approved as a building contractor unless such person, firm or entity is licensed by the 
State of North Carolina for his/her services, if applicable.  Notwithstanding the above, a Lot owner shall not hold the Board or its 

40



9 
 

members or the Declarant responsible for approving any particular building contractor in the event of said contractor’s negligence in 
the construction of a building on a Lot. 

 The Committee is presumed to have approved any plans referenced above, upon failure to respond within sixty (60) days after 
receipt of each completed application and particular plan.  In the event any Owner violates the terms of this Article, the Association 
shall give written notice to the Owner or responsible party to cure such violation within thirty (30) days.  The Association or its 
agents shall be entitled to enter upon the property of the Owner and remedy such defect including removal of any structure built in 
violation hereof, all at the expense of the Owner.  This right of the Association shall be in addition to all other general enforcement 
rights which the Association may have for a breach or violation of the terms of these covenants and restrictions and shall not be 
deemed a trespass by the Association or its agents. 

Section 4.  Minimum Standards for Environmentally Sensitive Buildings.   

            The Declarant or its successors and/or assigns shall have the right to impose construction standards for any new building 
within Greenwood Park relating to the installation of environmentally-sensitive components in said building, including, without 
limitation, the mechanical systems and electrical systems (“the Interior Standards”).  By way of example only, the Interior Standards 
may require energy star certifications in the construction of a dwelling on a Lot.  As part of the Committee review process 
referenced above, the Owner shall be required to comply with the Interior Standards or seek such variances or modifications as 
Declarant may allow in its sole discretion. 

Section 5.  Minimum Floor Areas/Floor Plan; Setbacks. 

Any dwelling structure built on a Lot shall be no less than 1,800 square feet including heated living space, garages, covered decks, 
screen porches and other roofed over areas. Variances from this minimum floor area requirement may be granted by the Committee 
in writing as determined in the Committee’s sole discretion.  In granting or denying such variances, the Committee may consider, 
among other things, the following factors: 

The topography of the Lot; the location of the structure in terms of the character of the neighborhood being promoted within the 
particular section of Greenwood Park; the access to the Lot and structure; the utilities for the Lot and serving the structure, if any; 
the aesthetics of the structure on the Lot;  any environmental matters related to the Lot;  the impact on adjoining uses or structures, 
planned or existing, including, but not limited to, views and privacy; and the costs of construction. 
 
This Section is to be construed to give the most flexibility to the Committee in tailoring the compatibility of any new structure with 
the environment on the Lot and surrounding area. 

The setbacks for the construction of any building on a Lot shall be governed by the minimum setbacks required by the Governmental 
Entity with zoning jurisdiction over said Lot in Greenwood Park. 

Section 6.  Minimum Site Improvement Requirements. 

(a) All driveways and parking areas must be designed and approved by the Committee using pavers, asphalt, concrete or 
combinations of other acceptable all-weather surfaces. 

(b) No play equipment, clotheslines, decorative features such as sculptures, bird baths, bird houses, fountains or other 
decorative embellishments shall be permitted that are visible from any street unless approved in writing from the Committee and 
any such approval is subject to periodic review.   

(c) The exterior material of all buildings shall extend to ground level and shall be brick veneer, stone veneer, wood, fiber 
cement, stucco, or a combination of same or other material approved by the Committee.    No foundation footings shall be visible.  
Other conditions may be taken into consideration that allows the alteration of the materials to come to the finish grade at the sole 
discretion of the Committee. 

(d) No bright-finished or bright-plated metal exterior door, screen door, window, window screen, louver, or other closure may 
be used.  However, a factory painted, or an anodized finish may be used, the color of which must be approved by the Committee. 

(e) All fencing, or landscaping walls must be approved and be of wood, brick, stone, wrought iron, or other material approved 
by the Committee.  Applications for fencing are to show location on lot within building setbacks and are to include plantings on the 
exterior perimeter to soften the appearance of any fencing.  The use of chain link or other like metal fencing will not be permitted 

41



10 
 

except when approved and where concealed by a wood fence and, provided, that said chain link or metal fencing is black, charcoal, 
dark brown or some other color, as approved by the Committee.   

(f) Outdoor lighting and general landscape planting and design must be approved by the Committee. Ongoing landscape 
plantings must be approved. Design of landscape plan is to include the maximum height of the trees and shrubs planned.  Attention 
will be given to all current or future trees or shrubs that grow to a height over five feet all of which must be approved prior to 
installation. Should a party plant any tree or shrub that can grow above five feet without the above-described written approval, the 
Board may fine a party the sum of five hundred dollars ($500.00) for every tree or shrub planted without permission, and thereafter 
fifty dollars ($50.00) per tree or shrub for each day until removal of the trees or shrubs or until a modified plan acceptable to the 
Board is completed.   In addition to the above remedies, the Association and its agents may enter the property to remove the trees 
or shrubs and charge the violating owner the costs of such removal.   The Declarant is exempted from this provision.   

(g)  Mailboxes will conform to the model selected by the Committee with specifications made available to the lot owner at the 
time of plan approval. Variations will be approved only after Committee review. 

Section 7.  Occupancy Permit.   At the completion of all construction in accordance with the plans submitted, the Owner shall 
request an on-site inspection by the applicable review entity set forth above.  No residence or building may be occupied until an 
Occupancy Permit has been issued by the Committee, when applicable.  This provision is in addition to any local governmental 
requirements that regulate occupancy. Approvals will not be unreasonably withheld, but in addition to the above, the following will 
be required: 

(a) Final as-built plans must be submitted in conformance with plans approved by the Committee for the construction of the 
structure, unless waived in writing by the Committee; 

(b) Exterior lighting must be approved; and 

 (c) All clean-up must be completed. 

ARTICLE VII: ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 
Section 1. Organization, Power of Appointment and Removal.  There shall be an Architectural Review Committee organized 
as follows: 
 
(a) Committee Composition.  The Committee shall consist of five (5) members, being a Chairperson and four additional 
members.  None of such members shall be required to be an architect or to meet any other particular qualifications for membership.  
A member need not be a member of the Board or an officer of the Association. 
(b) Quorum and Meetings of Members.  The Committee shall meet upon the call of the Chairman or of any three (3) members.  
At any meeting, three (3) members, one of which may be the Chairman, shall constitute a quorum. 
(c) Terms of Office.   The term of the Committee shall be staggered with the initial Committee members designated to serve 
one year, two year or three year terms and thereafter, each Committee member will serve a three year term.  Any new member 
appointed to replace a member who has resigned or been removed shall serve such member's unexpired term.  Members who have 
resigned, been removed or whose terms have expired may be reappointed. 
(d) Appointment and Removal.  The right to appoint and remove all members of the Committee at any time, and for any 
reason, shall be and is hereby vested solely in the Board, provided, however, that no member may be removed from the Committee 
by the Board except by the vote or written consent of three-fifths of all of the members of the Board.   
(e) Resignations.  Any members of the Committee may at any time resign from the Committee by giving written notice thereof 
to the Declarant and to the Board. 
(f) Vacancies.  Vacancies of the Committee, however caused, shall be filled by the Board.   
(g)   Declarant.    Notwithstanding the above, the Declarant reserves unto itself the   
right but not the obligation, to perform the functions of the Committee during the Declarant Control Period. 

Section 2. Duties.  It shall be the duty of the Committee to consider and act upon any and all proposals or plans submitted to 
it pursuant to the terms set forth in Article VI above, to adopt appropriate rules establishing policies for site improvements within 
Greenwood Park, to perform other duties delegated to it by the Board, and to carry out all other duties imposed upon it by this 
Declaration. 

Section 3. Meetings and Compensation.  The Committee shall meet from time to time (not more often than once each month 
except in extraordinary circumstances) as necessary to perform its duties hereunder.  Subject to the provisions of Paragraph (b) of 
Section 1 above, the vote or written consent of any three members, at a meeting, shall constitute the act of the Committee.  The 
Committee shall keep and maintain a written record of all actions taken by it at such meetings or otherwise.  No member of the 

42



11 
 

Committee who is a member of the Association shall receive from the Association, any compensation for services, provided that the 
Board may pay reasonable compensation to any member of the Committee who is not a member of the Association.  All members of 
the Committee shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Association for all reasonable expenses incurred by them in the 
performance of any Committee functions. 

Section 4. Architectural Review Committee Rules. The Committee may, but shall not be required to, from time to time in its 
sole discretion, adopt, amend, and repeal rules and regulations to be known as "Architectural Review Committee Rules" which shall 
establish policies for review procedures and standards for site improvements within Greenwood Park. 

Section 5.  Waiver. The approval by the Committee of any plans, drawings or specifications for any work done or proposed, or 
for any other matter requiring the approval of the Committee, shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver of any right to withhold 
approval of any similar plan, drawing, specifications or matter subsequently submitted for approval. 

Section 6. Liability.  Neither the Committee nor any member thereof shall be liable to the Association, any Owner, or to any 
other party, for any damage, loss or prejudice suffered or claimed on account of: 

(a) The approval or disapproval of any plans, drawings, specifications, whether or not defective. 

(b) The construction or performance of any work, whether or not pursuant to approved plans, drawings and specifications. 

(c) The development of any property, including, but not limited to, defective construction of residences. 

(d) The execution and filing of any estoppels certificate, whether or not the facts therein are correct. 

Section 7. Appeal of Committee Decisions.  Any party aggrieved by a decision of the Committee may appeal such decision to 
the Board, and such decision of the Committee is final, unless overridden by a vote of two-thirds of the Board.  No Owner or any 
other party shall have recourse against the Committee or the Board for its refusal to approve any plans, specifications or 
contractors.     

 

ARTICLE VIII: USE RESTRICTIONS 

Subject to the Special Declarant Rights, the following use restrictions shall apply to all property within Greenwood Park: 

Section 1.  Single-family Residential Purposes; Principal Building; Accessory Structures; Guesthouse. All Lots shall be used for 
single-family residential purposes only, except as otherwise designated on a Plat or recorded supplemental declaration.   No more 
than one principal building shall be permitted on any Lot.  Accessory structures may be allowed subject to Committee approval.   

Section 2.  Subdividing, Combination and Boundary Relocation.  No Lot shall be subdivided, or its boundary lines relocated, 
for any purpose other than to merge an additional Lot or part thereof so as to create a Lot larger than the original Lot.  No 
subdivision, combination or boundary relocation shall be made without the written approval of Declarant, its successors and assigns 
except, however, Declarant hereby expressly reserves to itself, its successors or assigns, the right to re-plat, combine or subdivide 
any Lot or Lots, shown on the recorded plats, prior to the conveyance thereof, in order to create a modified Lot or Lots.  These 
restrictions herein apply to each Lot which may be so created.   Following the combination of two Lots into one larger Lot, only the 
exterior boundary lines of the resulting larger Lot shall be considered in the interpretation of this Declaration.  Once combined, the 
resulting larger Lot may only be subdivided with the consent of the Declarant, its successors and/or assigns.  The Board, in its sole 
discretion, shall determine what effect, if any, the combination or subdivision of a platted Lot has on the assessments for that 
modified Lot. 

Section 3.  Non-single family residential use.  Except for home occupations as defined below, no commercial or industrial 
enterprise, undertaking or use or any other non-single family residential use (such as apartments) is permitted within Greenwood 
Park, unless specifically shown on a recorded Plat that has been signed by Declarant prior to the conveyance of the Lot or Parcel 
shown on said Plat.  If no such enterprise, undertaking or use is shown on a signed recorded plat, then no such enterprise 
undertaking, or use is permitted.  Notwithstanding the above, a "home occupation” on a Lot is allowed with the written consent of 
the Declarant or Association and in accordance with zoning regulations.  A "home occupation" is a use of a residence by an Owner-
occupant wherein not more than 25% of the residence is dedicated to business use and there is no traffic generated by the business, 
and no noise, odor or smoke is emitted off-site as a result of said business.   

Section 4. Duty to Maintain and Rebuild. 

43



12 
 

(a) Each Owner shall, at his/her sole cost and expense, maintain and repair his/her residence, keeping the same condition 
comparable to the condition of such residence at the time of its initial construction, excepting only normal wear and tear.   

(b) Each Owner shall keep the grass on the lot properly cut, shall keep the lot free from trash, and shall keep it otherwise neat 
and attractive in appearance.   This shall not be construed as requiring natural areas on a Lot to be mowed. 

(c) If all or any portion of a residence is damaged or destroyed by fire, or other casualty, then the Owner shall, with all due 
diligence, promptly rebuild, repair or reconstruct such apparent condition existing immediately prior to the casualty.  Alternatively, 
the Lot owner shall completely raze the residence and sod or seed the entire Lot until such time construction of a new residence is 
begun. 

Section 5. Temporary Structures; Mobile Home; Camping sites.   No structure of a temporary character shall be placed upon 
any portion of Greenwood Park at any time; provided, however, that this prohibition shall not apply to shelters used by contractors 
during the construction of any single-family residence.  Basements or partially complete single-family residences will be considered 
temporary and may not be inhabited.  Mobile homes, trailers, and tents, may not, at any time, be used as temporary or permanent 
residences or be permitted to remain on any portion of Greenwood Park after completion of construction thereon as herein above 
provided, except that the Declarant or the Board may designate areas within Greenwood Park as camping sites.  

Section 6.  Exterior Construction.  The exterior of a single-family residence on a Lot as well as site work and landscaping must 
be completed within eighteen (18) months after the construction of same shall have commenced, except where such completion is 
impossible or would result in great hardship to the Owner of a Lot due to strikes, fire, natural emergencies or natural calamities.  
Single family residences may not be occupied until the exterior thereof has been completed.  If the exterior is not completed within 
eighteen (18) months, the Board may require a responsible Lot owner to pay the Association the sum of one hundred fifty dollars 
($150.00) in liquidated damages for each day after (18) months that the exterior is not completed. 

Section 7.  Trees.  No trees, living or dead, shrubs or wildflowers may be removed or cut without the written approval of the 
Committee, unless said trees [wildflowers, etc.] are located within fifteen (15) feet of a residence or within the right-of-way of 
driveways and walkways.   Notwithstanding the above, any tree which poses a threat to life or property may be removed without 
the written consent of the Committee. Should a party remove any tree or vegetation as herein provided without the 
above-described written approval, the Board may fine a party the sum of one thousand five hundred dollars ($1500.00) for every 
tree cut without permission, and thereafter one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) per tree for each day that a replacement plan 
acceptable to the Board is not completed.   In addition to the above remedies, the Association and its agents may enter the property 
to replace the removed tree or vegetation and charge the violating owner the costs of such replacement.   The Declarant is 
exempted from this provision.   

Section 8.  Trash. No Lot shall be used or maintained as a dumping ground or disposal site for rubbish, trash, or garbage.  
Trash, garbage or other waste shall not be kept except in sanitary containers and at all times stored inside of a garage or residence 
(except for trash pickup days established by the applicable Governmental Entity or private waste hauling company, if applicable).  
This restriction shall not apply during the period of construction of a residence on the Lot or adjoining Lots, however, upon 
completion of construction the owner shall comply with all restrictions with respect to disposal of trash and maintenance of the Lot 
and property in a neat and attractive manner. 

Section 9.  Utilities; Antennae; Wireless Communication.   All utilities, wires, cables, antennae and the like, of any kind (such 
as telephone, electrical, television, radio and citizens band radios) must be placed underground except as may be expressly 
permitted and approved in writing by the Committee.  No wireless communication towers or antennae shall be permitted within 
Greenwood Park, except with the written permission of the Committee and the Declarant. 

Section 10.  Off-street Parking.  Each Owner of a single-family residence on a Lot shall provide sufficient space for parking of 
any and all of said Owner’s vehicles within a garage or driveway. Guest vehicles shall be parked off the roadways or in areas 
designated by the Declarant or the Board for parking. Garage doors must be closed at all times when not in use.  

Section 11. Vehicles.   The Declarant or the Board reserves the power to place any reasonable restrictions upon the use of 
roadways as may be allowed by law, including but not limited to the types and sizes of vehicles, including motor cycles, using the 
roads, the maximum and minimum speeds of vehicles, all other necessary traffic and parking regulations and the maximum noise 
level of vehicles. 

Section 12.  Vehicle Storage.   Any recreational vehicles, boats, motor homes, campers, commercial vehicles and the like must 
be parked in an area screened from view as determined by the Committee.   

44



13 
 

Section 13.  Lot Upkeep. It is the responsibility of each Lot Owner to prevent any unclean, unsightly, or unkempt condition 
of buildings or grounds to exist on the Lot Owner's property.  The Declarant or the Association shall have the right, but not the duty, 
to enter upon any property for the purpose of abating any unclean, unsightly or unkempt condition of buildings or grounds which 
tend to decrease the beauty of the specific area or the neighborhood as a whole. The cost of such abatement and any damage 
resulting from such entry shall be at the expense of the specific Lot Owner and said entry shall not be deemed a trespass. 

Section 14. Nuisances.  No obnoxious or offensive activity shall be carried on upon any portions of Greenwood Park nor shall 
anything be done tending to cause embarrassment, discomfort, annoyance or nuisance to any Owner of a Lot, tenant or guest 
thereof in any area of Greenwood Park thereby diminishing the enjoyment of other Lots by their owners.  No hazardous or toxic 
substances or wastes as defined by applicable law shall be dumped within Greenwood Park.  No plant, animal, device or thing of any 
sort whose normal activities or existence is in any way noxious, dangerous, unsightly, unpleasant, or of a nature as may diminish or 
destroy the enjoyment of any portion of Greenwood Park by the Lot owners, tenants, and guests thereof, may be maintained.  The 
Board has the right in its sole discretion to determine a nuisance, and upon ten (10) days' written notification by the Board, the 
activity must cease. The board reserves the right to restrict the times allowed for the use of outdoor noise creating landscaping 
machines and any other noise creating devices that may prove to be a nuisance or annoyance. 

Section 15. Erosion Control.  Declarant and/or the Association shall have the right to protect from erosion the land designated 
as areas upon which residential building shall take place, by planting trees, plants, and shrubs where and to the extent necessary or 
by such mechanical means as providing drainage ways and/or dams or other means deemed expedient or necessary by Declarant 
and/or Association to provide and insure against such erosion.  The Declarant or the Association, however, is under no duty to take 
such actions as herein above provided.  During the improvement of any Lot, every Owner of a Lot shall use best management 
practices as that term is defined by applicable State of North Carolina environmental regulations to control erosion and prevent off-
site damages so long as one-fourth (1/4) acre of land is disturbed.  The Committee may require any Lot owner disturbing more than 
one-fourth (1/4) acre of land to submit for Committee approval an erosion control and drainage plan, and therein may require that 
such plan be signed off by a licensed Engineer.  In order to implement effective and adequate erosion control and protect the beauty 
and purity of the water courses within Greenwood Park, the Association and its agents shall have the right, but not the obligation, to 
enter any Lot for the purpose of correcting or remedying any erosion control violations. Any costs of remediation attributable to a 
Lot Owner's failure to comply with best management practices in erosion control incurred by the Association shall be the 
responsibility of the Lot Owner.  The Declarant is exempted from this provision.   

Section 16. Fires. All open burning is prohibited except open burning allowed by the following exceptions: Campfires and fires 
used solely for outdoor cooking and other recreational purposes, or for ceremonial occasions, or for human warmth and comfort 
and which do not create a nuisance and do not use synthetic materials or refuse or salvageable materials for fuel. Outdoor grilling 
shall be done with the greatest of care in view of fire and smoke hazards and general pollution. 

Section 17. Signs.   

(a)  Other than political signs, no sign for advertising or for any other purpose shall be displayed on any Lot or on a building or a 
structure on any Lot, except temporary construction signs not greater than  nine (9) square feet in size; provided, however, 
Declarant shall have the right to (i) erect signs when advertising the property, (ii) place signs on Lots designating the lot number of 
Lots, and (iii) following the sale of the lot, place signs of such Lot indicating the name of the purchaser of that Lot.  This restriction 
shall not prohibit placement of occupant name signs and Lot numbers as approved by the Architectural Review Committee.  
Notwithstanding the above, the Declarant may require an owner of a Lot to install, at Owner's expenses, and at a location 
designated by Declarant, common address signage for easy identification for emergency services. 

(b) For elections in which owner(s) of a Lot are eligible to vote, political signs, with no more than 1 sign per candidate or issue 
and not greater than 24 inches x 24 inches in size, may be placed by an owner of a lot within their building setbacks no earlier than 
45 days prior to an election and shall be removed within 2 days after the election day.  
 
(c) Any display of the American and State Flag is to be regulated in accordance with State Ordinance 47F-3-121 and any 
amendments thereto. 
 

Section 18. Water Courses.   No lake shall be constructed, neither shall the course of any stream, spring or other water course 
be changed, nor any culverts installed in any water course without prior written approval of Declarant.  

45



14 
 

Section 19. Storage Tanks. Underground gasoline storage tanks are not permitted within Greenwood Park.  Underground 
propane or liquid gas tanks and above ground storage tanks may be allowed subject to Committee written approval. 

Section 20. Animals.  No animal, livestock or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on any Lot, except that dogs, cats 
or other commonly domesticated household pets may be kept, provided that they are not bred, maintained or housed (i.e. kennels) 
for commercial purposes.  Pets, when running loose, must be kept strictly within the boundaries of a Lot Owner's property, except as 
may be permitted on Common Elements by Board rules and regulations.  At all other times, they must be kept securely on a leash.  
No pets are permitted if they are kept so as to constitute a nuisance as determined by the Board in their sole discretion. 

Section 21. Vacant Lots, Reserved Areas and/or Future Development.  Unused and/or vacant lots, or property designated 
herein as reserved areas or as Future Development are not to be trespassed upon for any reason, except that Declarant on a case-
by-case basis may give a revocable, written license to an individual Lot owner to hike in these areas.  Any Lot owner who is provided 
a license for hiking by the Declarant in its sole discretion agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Declarant from any and all costs, 
expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees), damages, or losses that may arise from the use of the license.  Any such Lot owner 
agrees to assume all risks associated with being on the property that is the subject matter of the license, and no easement rights to 
the land shall accrue to the Lot Owner from the issuance of the license. 

Section 22. Hunting and Firearms.  Hunting, trapping, or the harassing of animals, fowl or game is prohibited, and the 
discharge of firearms or bows and arrows for any purpose shall be prohibited. 

Section 23. Fishing.  Fishing rules are to be governed by the State of North Carolina and rules as circulated to the owners of 
Lots by the Declarant and/or the Board. 

Section 24. Trespass.  Whenever the Association or the Declarant is permitted by these covenants to correct, repair, clean, 
preserve, clean out or do any action on any portion of Greenwood Park, including Lots and Parcels, entering such areas and taking 
such action shall not be deemed a trespass on the part of the Association or the Declarant or their agents. 

Section 25. Septic Systems.  Septic tanks, drain and repair fields are prohibited on any Lot or Parcel.   

Section 26. Enforcement. 

(a)  All covenants, restrictions and affirmative obligations set forth herein shall run with the land and shall be binding on all 
parties and persons claiming under them. 

(b)  Enforcement of these covenants and restrictions shall be by any proceeding at law or equity against any person or persons 
violating or attempting to violate or circumvent any covenant or restriction, either to restrain or enjoin violations, or to recover 
damages, or in addition to the lien enforcement rights set out in the Act, by any appropriate proceeding at law or equity against the 
land to enforce any lien created by these covenants.  The remedies given herein are distinct, cumulative remedies and the exercise 
of any of them shall not be deemed to exclude the rights of Declarant or Association to exercise any or all of the others or those 
which may be permitted by law or equity.  The failure to enforce any rights, restrictions or conditions contained herein, however 
long continued, shall not be deemed a waiver of this right to do so hereafter as to the same breach, or as to a breach occurring prior 
to or subsequent thereto and shall not bear or affect its enforcement. Any person entitled to file a legal action for violation of these 
covenants shall be entitled as part of any judgment in favor of the filing party to recover reasonable attorney's fees as a part of such 
action. 

Section 27. Responsibility for Others.  Owners of a Lot are obligated to assume the responsibility that any and all dependents, 
guests, servants, visitors and building contractors, working for the Lot Owner, observe and maintain all the rules, regulations, 
covenants and restrictions binding the Lot Owners themselves. 

Section 28. Leasing or Renting.  A Lot Owner may lease or rent the family residence owned by such Owner; provided, however, 
that the tenant or lessee shall be bound by all covenants and restrictions contained herein.   A Lot Owner may lease or rent a portion 
of the family dwelling unit only with application to the Board and the expressed written approval of the Board for which the Board 
has maximum flexibility to establish terms, rules and regulations for each application.  

Section 29. Variances.   In case of hardship and for good cause shown, the Declarant during the Declarant Control Period or the 
Board or the Committee may in their sole discretion grant variances from any of these covenants and restrictions.  The decision of 
Declarant or the Board to grant or not grant variances as herein provided is based upon the Declarant's or Board's sole and absolute 
discretion. 

46



15 
 

ARTICLE IX: FUTURE SECTIONS; PHASES; ANNEXED PROPERTIES; AND REMOVAL OF PROPERTIES 

During the Declarant Control Period, the Declarant reserves the right to subject Annexed Properties as herein defined to the terms 
of this Declaration and the general plan of development for Greenwood Park by the filing of a supplement to this Declaration with 
corresponding plat that identifies the property to be added to Greenwood Park.  Notwithstanding any provision of this Declaration 
to the contrary, Declarant, in its sole discretion, shall designate in the Supplemental Declaration the permitted uses within the 
Annexed Properties, which may be other than residential, and any other development restrictions affecting the use and enjoyment 
of said land.  Notwithstanding the differences, if any in the use restrictions for Annexed Properties, it is the intent of the Declarant 
that properties once annexed be part of the general plan of development for Greenwood Park; provided, however, during the 
Declarant Control Period, the Declarant reserves the right to modify the boundaries of Greenwood Park to remove unsold properties 
from the Greenwood Park planned community. This right to remove properties from the general plan of development for 
Greenwood Park does not apply to Common Elements unless such removal is in conformity with Section 47F-3-112 of the Act.  This 
Article is to be construed to give the Declarant the broadest flexibility to add Annexed Properties to the Greenwood Park planned 
community with use restrictions tailored for each additional tract or to modify the boundaries of Greenwood Park when determined 
in the sole discretion of the Declarant to be in the best interest of Greenwood Park.   

ARTICLE X: AMENDMENTS 

During the Declarant Control Period, the Declarant reserves the right, without the consent of the Association or any other Lot owner, 
to amend this Declaration or any amendments thereto if necessary for the exercise of or protection of any Special Declarant Rights.  
Otherwise, this Declaration may be amended only by affirmative vote or written agreement signed by Owners of Lots to which sixty-
seven percent (67%) of the votes in the Association are allocated. During the Declarant Control Period, any amendments to this 
Declaration require the written consent of the Declarant. 

ARTICLE XI: MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 1. Severability. Should any covenant, restriction, article, paragraph, subparagraph, sentence, clause, phrase or 
term herein contained be declared to be void, invalid, illegal or unenforceable, for any reason whatsoever, by the adjudication of 
any court or other tribunal having jurisdiction over the parties hereto and the subject matter hereof, such judgment shall in no way 
affect any other provisions hereof which are hereby declared to be severable and which shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 2. Construction of this Declaration. 

This Declaration and the provisions contained herein shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina.  
Except for Special Declarant Rights and other rights herein reserved to the Declarant, the Board of Directors of the Association shall 
have the right to determine all questions arising in connection with this Declaration and to construe and interpret the provisions 
hereof, and its good faith determination, construction or interpretation shall be final and binding.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47



EXHIBIT A

Property Subject to Declaration of Covenants, Restrictions, et al. for Greenwood Park, a Planned
Community

BEING all of Phase 1 of Greenwood Park Subdivision as shown on a plat prepared by Blackrock
Surveying and Land Design, P.C. and recorded in PB___________ PG_______ of the Buncombe County,
North Carolina Register’s Office, reference to said plat being made for a more particular description of
said property.

48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, January 22, 2018 

Subject: Proposed Zoning Map Amendment  

Presenter:   Planning Director 

Attachments: Zoning Map Amendment Application and Related Documents, 
Recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board, Public 
Notice, Proposed Ordinance 

Description: 

Staff is in possession of an application to amend the zoning map of the Town of 
Weaverville. Said application proposes to change the zoning of three adjacent parcels of 
land under common ownership within three separate zoning districts (R-3, C-2, I-1) into a 
single zoning distinction of R-12. These three parcels may be found between Walmart and 
Monticello Road. 

It is important for Council to take into account each use permitted within the zoning 
district when considering a zoning change. However, in this instance, the R-12 zoning 
district was specifically created and implemented to accommodate multifamily housing at a 
density not to exceed 12 units per acre. It is my understanding that the applicant will be 
applying for a conditional zoning district for this purpose should the zoning of R-12 be 
achieved.    

As you will see in the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board, the favorable 
recommendation was passed via a 3-2 vote with Theroux, Burge and Cordell in favor and 
Osborne and Stanz casting the dissenting votes. 

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the approval of the zoning map amendment in conjunction with the 
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board. 

 

 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP 
OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

 

 WHEREAS, HFW Endeavors is the owner of three adjacent parcels of land under 
common ownership bearing parcel identification numbers 9733-70-1422, 9733-70-0050, 
and 9732-79-2660, and which are designated as three separate zoning districts (R-3, C-2, 
and I-1):; 

WHEREAS, the Town is in receipt of a zoning map amendment application 
submitted by HFW Endeavors requesting that the zoning of the three adjacent parcels of 
land be changed to R-12; 

 WHEREAS, on January 2, 2018, the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the 
application for zoning map amendment and voted unanimously to forward a favorable 
recommendation on an R-12 zoning designation for the three parcels; 

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board specifically review the application in 
light of the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and found that an R-12 zoning 
designation is consistent with the plan in that multi-family residential is contemplated in 
the area in which the applicant’s properties are located; 

 WHEREAS, after proper notice the Town Council held a public hearing on January 
22, 2018, in order to receive input from the public on these proposed amendments;  

 WHEREAS, we find that the zoning map amendment as requested does not conflict 
with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, 
North Carolina, that the following parcels be zoned R-12 and that the Town’s official zoning 
map be updated to reflect the as follows: 9733-70-1422, 9733-70-0050, and 9732-79-2660. 

1. These amendments shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

ADOPTED THIS the 22nd day of January, 2018, by a vote of ___ in favor and __ against. 

 

__________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 

 

ATTESTD BY:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
_________________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk  JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney  

69



 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Public Notice is hereby given that the Town of Weaverville Town Council will hold a Public Hearing 
on Monday, January 22, 2017 at 7:00p.m or at such time as Council reaches the issue. This meeting 
will occur within Council Chambers at Town Hall located at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC 
to consider the following item: 
 
Proposed Zoning Map Amendment related to three contiguous parcels of land adjacent to 
Monticello Road known commonly by the parcel identification numbers 9733-70-0398, 9733-70-
0050 and 9732-79-2660. The application calls for the rezoning or each property from I-1, R-3 and 
C-2 respectively to R-12.   
  
If you would like additional information or to review the content related to the Public Hearing you 
may contact Town Planner and Deputy Town Clerk James Eller at 828-484-7002 or 
jeller@weavervillenc.org. 
 
Publication Dates: 1/11/18 and 1/18/18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70

mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org


71



72



  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

73



  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

74



  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

75



76



77



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Monday, January 22, 2018 

Proposed Zoning Map Amendment 

Planning Director 

Zoning Map Amendment Application and Related 
Documents, Recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 
Board, Proposed Ordinance 

Description: 

Staff is in possession of an application to amend the zoning map of the Town of 
Weaverville. Said application proposes to change the zoning of three adjacent parcels of 
land under common ownership within three separate zoning districts (R-3, C-2, I-1) into a 
single zoning distinction of R-12. These three parcels may be found between Walmart and 
Monticello Road. 

It is important for Council to take into account each use permitted within the zoning 
district when considering a zoning change. However, in this instance, the R-12 zoning 
district was specifically created and implemented to accommodate multifamily housing at a 
density not to exceed 12 units per acre. It is my understanding that the applicant will be 
applying for a conditional zoning district for this purpose should the zoning of R-12 be 
achieved.    

As you will see in the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board, the favorable 
recommendation was passed via a 3-2 vote with Theroux, Burge and Cordell in favor and 
Osborne and Stanz casting the dissenting votes. 

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the approval of the zoning map amendment in conjunction with the 
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board.  An ordinance has been drafted and is 
attached for Town Council's consideration if Town Council is inclined to approve the 
zoning map amendment as requested.

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP 
OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

WHEREAS, HFW Endeavors is the owner of three adjacent parcels of land under 
common ownership bearing parcel identification numbers 9733-70-1422, 9733-70-0050, 
and 9732-79-2660, and which are designated as three separate zoning districts (R-3, C-2, 
and I-1):; 

WHEREAS, the Town is in receipt of a zoning map amendment application 
submitted by HFW Endeavors requesting that the zoning of the three adjacent parcels of 
land be changed to R-12; 

WHEREAS, on January 2, 2018, the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the 
application for zoning map amendment and voted to forward a favorable recommendation 
on an R-12 zoning designation for the three parcels; 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board specifically review the application in 
light of the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and found that an R-12 zoning 
designation is consistent with the plan in that multi-family residential is contemplated in 
the area in which the applicant’s properties are located; 

WHEREAS, after proper notice the Town Council held a public hearing on January 
22, 2018, in order to receive input from the public on these proposed amendments;  

WHEREAS, we find that the zoning map amendment as requested does not conflict 
with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, 
North Carolina, that the following parcels be zoned R-12 and that the Town’s official zoning 
map be updated to reflect the as follows: 9733-70-1422, 9733-70-0050, and 9732-79-2660. 

1. These amendments shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

ADOPTED THIS the 22nd day of January, 2018, by a vote of ___ in favor and __ against. 

__________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 

ATTESTD BY: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney 

85



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

	

Date	of	Meeting:	 	 January	22,	2018	 	

Subject:	 	 	 Departmental	Quarterly	Report:		Planning	 	

Presenter:	 	 	 Planning	Director	

Attachments:	 	 	 Quarterly	Report	

	

Description:	

Attached	please	find	the	quarterly	report.	 
 

	

	

Council	Action	Requested:	

No	action	requested.	

	

86



 

Planning Department Report – Q4, 2017 
 

Total Zoning Permits Issued: 34 
 
Residential: 
Single family dwellings: 20 
Internal upfit or accessory structure: 9 
 
Commercial: 
New Commercial: 2 (Unaddressed Weaver Village Way, Mobile Food Vendor at 7 North Buncombe 
School Road) 
Internal upfit or accessory structure: 3 (68 North Main, 58 Weaver Village, 275 Aiken) 
 
 
Sign Permits: 4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

87



 

2017 Zoning Permit Applications 
 
 

Zoning Permits:  Total: 120 
 
   Single Family, New Construction: 61 
   Single Family, Addition or Upfit: 41 
 
   Commercial, New Construction: 5 
   Commercial, Addition or Upfit: 13 
 

 
2016: Residential, 79; Commercial, 8; Total, 87 
2015: Residential, 27; Commercial, 4; Total, 31 
2014: Residential, 49; Commercial, 4; Total, 53 (with ETJ)  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

88



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

	

Date	of	Meeting:	 	 January	22,	2018	 	

Subject:	 	 	 Departmental	Quarterly	Report:		Finance	 	

Presenter:	 	 	 Finance	Director	

Attachments:	 	 	 Quarterly	Report	

	

Description:	

Attached	please	find	the	quarterly	report.	 
 

	

	

Council	Action	Requested:	

No	action	requested.	

	

89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

Date	of	Meeting:	 	 January	22,	2018	

Subject:	 Budget	Amendment	–	Police	Department	&	Contingency			

Presenter:	 	 	 Finance	Director	

Attachments:	 	 Budget	Amendment	Form	 	

	

Description/Summary	of	Request:	

The	unexpected	retirement	of	the	Town’s	Police	Chief	on	12/31/17	resulted	in	a	few	
expenditures	that	are	not	in	the	current	year’s	budget,	including	the	payment	for	the	law	
enforcement	special	separation	allowance,	a	payout	for	accrued	vacation	leave	and	a	
required	contribution‐based	benefit	paid	to	the	N.C.	Retirement	System.	The	attached	budget	
amendment	form	details	these	expenditure	accounts.	In	addition,	the	Town	Manager	has	requested	
and	received	quotes	for	the	replacement	of	Town	Council’s	workspaces	and	the	addition	of	
acoustical	panels	in	the	community	room	space.	The	current	furniture	has	some	safety	issues	
because	they	tip	over	easily.	Additionally,	there	is	a	need	to	make	better	use	of	the	space	to	the	side	
of	Council.		The	aforementioned	expenditures	are	proposed	to	be	funded	by	a	combination	of	
appropriated	fund	balance	and	contingency	funds	that	have	been	included	within	the	budget.		

	

	

Action	Requested:	

Town	Manager	recommends	approval	of	the	attached	Budget	Amendment.	

 

	

100



Budget	Amendment	

Town	of	Weaverville	

	

What	expense	accounts	are	to	be	increased?	

	

Account	 	 Account	Description Transfer	Amount
010‐430‐431‐12100	 	 Police	Dept	‐	Salaries	&	Wages	 	 $10,589.00
010‐430‐431‐18200	 	 Police	Dept	‐	Retirement	 	 $41,739.83
010‐430‐431‐12500	 	 Police	Dept	‐	Separation	Allowance	 	 $13,263.42
010‐430‐431‐18100	 	 Police	Dept	‐	FICA	 	 $2,687.73
010‐430‐431‐18210	 	 Police	Dept	‐ 401(K)	Match $1,093.52
010‐410‐412‐50500	 	 Administration	–	Capital	Equip.	 	 $15,000.00
	

What	expense	account(s)	are	to	be	decreased	or	additional	revenue	expected	to	offset	expense?	

	

Account	 	 Account	Description	 	 Transfer	Amount	
010‐004‐310‐09900	 	 Appropriated	Fund	Balance	 	 																				$69,373.50
010‐005‐999‐90000	 	 General	Fund	‐	Contingency	 	 $15,000.00
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	

Justification:		Please	provide	a	brief	justification	for	this	budget	amendment.			

Funds	special	separation	allowance,	accumulated	vacation	payout	and	contribution‐based	benefit	paid	to	the	N.C.	Retirement	System	for	
retired	police	chief	with	appropriated	fund	balance.	Funds	installation	of	acoustical	panels	and	replacement	council	dias	from	
contingency	per	budget	ordinance	directive.	

	 	 1/18/2018
Authorized	by	Finance	Officer	 Date
	 	 	
	 	 1/18/2018
Authorized	by	Town	Manager	 	 Date	
	 	 	
	 	
Authorized	by	Town	Council	(if	applicable)	 	 Date	
	

	
Budget	Ordinance	Section	5:	
A. He/she	may	transfer	amounts	between	line	items,	expenditures	and	revenues,	within	a	department	without	limitation	and	

without	a	report	being	required.	
B. He/she	 may	 transfer	 amounts	 up	 to	 $5,000	 between	 departments	 within	 any	 one	 division,	 including	 contingency	

appropriations,	within	the	same	fund	during	any	month.	For	the	purpose	of	this	ordinance,	the	Town	of	Weaverville	has	the	
following	divisions:	Public	Works,	Public	Safety,	and	General	Government.	The	Budget	Officer	must	make	an	official	report	
on	such	transfers	at	the	next	regular	meeting	of	the	Governing	Board.	Transfers	between	divisions	would	require	action	of	
the	Governing	Board.	

C. He/she	may	not	transfer	any	amounts	between	funds,	except	as	approved	by	the	Governing	Board	in	the	Budget	Ordinance	
as	amended.	

101



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  January 22, 2018 

Subject:                Water line extension and allocation request   
                                                       for the proposed Weaverville Condo Project. 

                                                                                                 
Presenter:             Dale Pennell, Public Works Director 
                                                     Warren Sugg, Engineer for the applicant 
                                              
Attachments:              Application, Preliminary Plat     
                                            
 

Description:                           Water service request to serve the proposed Weaverville  

                                                    Condo Project consisting of 12 buildings containing 4 to 6  

single-family residential units each (50 total units).  Allocation  

of 20,000 gallons per day with peak demand of 100 gpm.  Fire  

protection would also be provided.  Project would be served by  

water line extension(s) from existing 12” town water lines.   

Demand would amount to 1.5% of current available water  

plant capacity.                                                      
                                                                                                                                                                        

 

Action Requested:               Council discussion and decision regarding suppling service,  

and/or other issues related to this proposed single-family  

project.  

                                                        

102



 

 

The Town of 

Weaverville 
NORTH CAROLINA 

30 South Main Street ● Weaverville, NC  28787 (PO Box 338) 

Phone (828) 645-7116 ● Fax (828) 645-4776 

www.weavervillenc.org 

 

January 11, 2018 
 
Mr. Warren Sugg, PE 
Civil Design Concepts, PA 
168 Patton Avenue 
Asheville, NC  28801 
  
Reference: Commitment Letter Application 

Weaverville Condo Project, 152 Monticello Road, Weaverville, NC 
50 Residences; Monticello Road and Gill Branch Road behind Wal-Mart and Dollar Tree 
PIN: 9733-70-1422; 9733-70-0050; 9732-79-2660 

 
Dear Mr. Sugg: 

Your request for municipal water service to the proposed 50 Unit Residential Condo Project described above has been 
reviewed by town staff. Your property is within the current Town limits and existing 12” water lines are located in Northcrest 
Drive and Monticello Road to serve your property.  Your proposed project would require a water line extension to the Town 
of Weaverville Water Distribution System; therefore the extension will require approval by Weaverville Town Council. This 
proposed project is subject to the Town of Weaverville Water Policies and Procedures and design criteria if approved. 
Weaverville Town Council will consider projects for water line extensions upon formal request per the Town of Weaverville 
Water Policies and Procedures Section 2.4 EXTENSION AGREEMENT.  In addition, the following conditions will apply: 

1. The project developer and/or other legal representative can formally request, in person, to the Weaverville Town 
Council, consideration for this request for water line extension and service. This would be done at the next Town Council 
monthly meeting, currently scheduled for Monday, January 22th at 7:00 PM. The Council Chambers is located at 
Weaverville Town Hall, 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, N.C. 

2. If approved by Town Council, I will issue you a formal Commitment Letter which contains the specific conditions and 
actions which must be met to activate the commitment. 

3. Be fully prepared to present concept drawings of this proposed project and any other documentation you feel will 
benefit your presentation to Town Council. If you cannot be prepared by the above meeting date, please advise so we 
can move you to Council’s February 26, 2017 scheduled meeting.  

4. If approved, the owner/developer shall be responsible for designing and constructing an extension of the Town's water 
distribution system to and through the subject property in accordance with Town Specifications and Ordinances, 
including a thorough review by town staff of the plans for the water line extension prior to town approval, permitting 
and related construction activity. 

5. The owner/developer shall be responsible for obtaining any and all right-of-ways, encroachment agreements, permits, 
etc. necessary for the installation of said water distribution system and conveying said water distribution system and 
applicable right-of-ways to the Town for permanent maintenance as part of the Town system. 

Sincerely, 
  

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 
Town Manager 

 
cc:   Dale Pennell, PE, PLS, Public Works Director 
    Weaverville Condo Project behind WM DTree extension letter 01112018 

103



104



105



106



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, January 22, 2018  

Subject: Consulting Agreement with Withers-Ravenel-Martin for Preparation 

of a Preliminary Engineering Report  

Presenter:   Town Manager 

Attachments:   Agreement 

 

Description: 

As Town Council will recall, Dennie Martin was in attendance at Council’s October 2017 workshop 
to speak to Council about the potential options for a water treatment plant expansion. Staff has 
noted that additional information will be necessary as Town Council considers its options related to 
the potential expansion of the water treatment plant. The attached agreement, if authorized, will 
ensure that this information is delivered to the Town to assist in making these important decisions. 
Please see the attached agreement for the full scope of the work to be performed. 

 

 

 

Council Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends that Town Council authorize her to execute the agreement 
with Withers-Ravenel-Martin. 

 

 Suggested Motion: 

I move that Town Council authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement with 
Withers-Ravenel-Martin as described and set forth within the agenda packet. 

 

 

107



108



WithersRavenel 
Our People. Your Success. 

 

Preparation of Preliminary Engineering Report – 
Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

WR Project No. 02170809.00 

November 3, 2017 Page 2 
 

 

Preparation of Preliminary Engineering Report 
Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

Service Agreement for Professional Services 

A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The Town of Weaverville is seeking professional engineering services to prepare a Preliminary Engineering 
Report (PER) to support a funding application for expanding the Town’s potable water system capacity.   

B. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The CONSULTANT, upon authorization by the CLIENT, will provide the following Basic Services: 
 

Task 1 – Prepare Preliminary Engineering Report 

1.1. Prepare PER 

CONSULTANT will prepare a Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) which addresses options available to the 
CLIENT for expanding the capacity of the potable water supply system to meet the current and future 
demands of the community. Specifically, the PER will include, the following components: 
 
 Description of the Project Area 
 Maps of the Project Area 
 Description of the Existing Water System 
 Description of the Need for the Project 
 Alternatives Analysis 
 Project Description 
 Cost Opinion 
 Conclusions and Recommendations 

 
The PER associated with this scope of services will expand on a recently completed report (by others) and 
build a document which will allow the CLIENT to evaluate practical alternatives. Throughout this process, it 
is expected that CONSULTANT will work closely with CLIENT to develop these alternatives for expanding 
the water supply system and provide meaningful insight into each alternative that will allow the CLIENT to 
select an alternative that best serves the interest of the CLIENT.   

1.2. Deliverables 

 CONSULTANT will provide up to five (5) copies of the bound and sealed PER to the CLIENT for its use in 
the application process.   This AGREEMENT assumes the PER will consists of approximately 75 pages.  

C. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
Services that are not included in Section B or are specifically excluded from this AGREEMENT shall be 
considered Additional Services. The CONSULTANT will furnish or obtain from others, additional services that 
are not covered under Section B or specifically excluded if requested in writing by the CLIENT and accepted 
by the CONSULTANT.  Additional services shall be paid by the CLIENT in accordance with the Fee & Expense 
Schedule outlined in Exhibit I and II.   

 Preparing reports, maps, cost estimates and drawings for alternate/additional service areas (not initially 
discussed) when so directed by the CLIENT. 

 Serving as a witness for the CLIENT in any litigation involving the PROJECT. 
 Providing preliminary engineering reports to the CLIENT in excess of the quantity to be provided under 

Subsection 1.2 hereof. 

109



WithersRavenel 
Our People. Your Success. 

 

Preparation of Preliminary Engineering Report – 
Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

WR Project No. 02170809.00 

November 3, 2017 Page 3 
 

 

 Providing other miscellaneous additional services which are not a part of the Basic Services, when such 
other additional services are authorized by the CLIENT in writing, including special services which may 
be required for environmental (wetlands delineation) and/or geotechnical work. 

D. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
During the performance of the CONSULTANT’S services under this AGREEMENT, the CLIENT will: 

 Provide any information needed to complete the PROJECT not specifically addressed in the Scope of 
Services.  Any changes to the alternatives or PROJECT requirements after CONSULTANT has begun 
work may require additional fees.   

 Assist the CONSULTANT by providing all available information pertinent to the PROJECT.   
 Examine all proposals and other documents presented by the CONSULTANT and render in writing 

decisions pertaining thereto within a reasonable time period so as not to delay the services of the 
CONSULTANT. 

 Handle matters requiring an attorney at law. 

E. COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 
CONSULTANT proposes to provide the Scope of Services previously outlined on a fixed fee basis as described 
in the table below.   

 

Task Number Task Name Cost 

1 Prepare PER $8,500 

 Total $8,500 

 

Invoices will be based on the percentage of the project accomplished during the billing period.  Payment is 
due upon receipt of invoice.  Interest shall be charged at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) percent per month 
on all balances due over 30 days from date of invoice. 

F. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  
CONSULTANT has included a copy of its Standard Terms and Conditions (Exhibit I) and Fee and Expense 
Schedule (Exhibit II) with this proposal and by incorporation makes them a contractual obligation along with 
the scope of this letter agreement. 

G. TIMELINE FOR SERVICES 
CONSULTANT will begin services immediately upon receipt of signed contract. 

   

 

  

110



111



 

WithersRavenel, Inc. Standard Terms & Conditions Page 1 
 Effective September 25, 2017 

E X H I B I T  I  

Standard Terms and Conditions 

WithersRavenel, Inc. 

 The proposal submitted by WithersRavenel, INC. (“CONSULTANT”) is subject to the following terms and conditions (collectively referred to as 
the “Agreement”) and, by accepting the proposal, the services, or any part thereof, the CLIENT agrees and accepts the terms and conditions outlined below:

1. Payment: 

a) The CLIENT will pay CONSULTANT for services and expenses 
in accordance with periodic invoices to CLIENT and a final 
invoice upon completion of the services. Each invoice is due 
and payable in full upon presentation to CLIENT. Invoices are 
past due after 30 days. Past due amounts are subject to 
interest at a rate of one and one-half percent per month (18% 
per annum) on the outstanding balance from the date of the 
invoice.  

b) If the CLIENT fails to make payment to the CONSULTANT 
within 45 days after the transmittal of an invoice, the 
CONSULTANT may, after giving 7 days written notice to the 
CLIENT, suspend services under this Agreement until all 
amounts due hereunder are paid in full. If an invoice remains 
unpaid after 90 days from invoice date, the CONSULTANT 
may terminate the Agreement and/or initiate legal 
proceedings to collect the fees owed, plus other reasonable 
expenses of collection including attorney’s fees.  

2. Notification of Breach or Default: The CLIENT shall provide prompt 
written notice to the CONSULTANT if CLIENT becomes aware of any 
breach, error, omission or inconsistency arising out of CONSULTANT’s 
work or any other alleged breach of contract by the CONSULTANT. The 
failure of CLIENT to provide such written notice within ten (10) days 
from the time CLIENT became aware of the fault, defect, error, omission, 
inconsistency or breach, shall constitute a waiver by CLIENT of any and 
all claims against the CONSULTANT arising out of such fault, defect, 
error, omission, inconsistency or breach. Emails shall be considered 
adequate written notice for purposes of this Agreement. 

3. Standard of Care: CONSULTANT shall perform Agreement for 
CLIENT in a professional manner, using that degree of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by and consistent with the standards of 
professionals providing the same services in the same or a similar locality 
as the project. THERE ARE NO OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR 
IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE THAT WILL OR CAN ARISE 
OUT OF THE SERVICES PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT OR THIS 
AGREEMENT.  

4. Waiver of Consequential Damages/Limitation of Liability: CLIENT 
agrees that CONSULTANT’s aggregate liability for any and all claims that 
may be asserted by CLIENT is limited to $50,000 or to the fee paid to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement, whichever is greater. Both 
CLIENT and CONSULTANT hereby waive any right to pursue claims for 
consequential damages against one another, including any claims for lost 
profits. 

5. Representations of CLIENT: CLIENT warrants and covenants that 
sufficient funds are available or will be available upon receipt of 
CONSULTANT’s invoice to make payment in full for the services 
rendered by CONSULTANT, and that such payments shall be made in a 
timely fashion.  

6. Ownership of Instruments of Service: All reports, plans, 
specifications, field data and notes and other documents, including all 
documents on electronic media, prepared by the CONSULTANT as 
instrument of service, shall remain the property of the CONSULTANT. 
The CONSULTANT shall retain all common law, statutory and other 
rights, including the copyright thereto. In the event of termination of this 
Agreement and upon full payment of fees owed to CONSULTANT, 

CONSULTANT shall make available to CLIENT copies of all plans and 
specifications.  

7. Change Orders: CONSULTANT will treat as a change order any 
written or oral order (including directions, instructions, interpretations or 
determinations) from CLIENT which request changes in the Agreement 
or CONSULTANT’s scope of work. CONSULTANT will give CLIENT 
written notice within ten (10) days of a Change Order of any resulting 
increase in CONSULTANT’s fees.  

8. Opinion of Cost/Cost Estimates: Since the CONSULTANT has no 
control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment of services furnished 
by others, or over methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions, any and all opinions as to costs rendered 
hereunder, including but not limited to opinions as to the costs of 
construction and materials, shall be made on the basis of its experience 
and qualifications and represent its best judgment as an experienced and 
qualified professional familiar with the construction industry; but the 
CONSULTANT cannot and does not guarantee the proposals, bids or 
actual costs and will not vary significantly from opinions of probable 
costs prepared by it. If at any time the CLIENT wishes greater assurances 
as to the amount of any costs, he shall employ an independent cost 
estimator to make such determination.  

9. Assignment and Third Parties: Nothing under this Agreement shall 
be construed to give any rights or benefits in this Agreement to anyone 
other than the CLIENT and CONSULTANT, and all duties and 
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the 
sole and exclusive benefit of the CLIENT and the CONSULTANT and not 
for the benefit of any other party. Neither the CLIENT nor the 
CONSULTANT shall assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or 
interests in this Agreement without the written consent of the other 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld. However, nothing contained 
herein shall prevent or restrict the CONSULTANT from employing 
independent subconsultants as the CONSULTANT may deem 
appropriate to assist in the performance of services hereunder.  

10. Project Site: Should CLIENT not be owner of the project site, then 
CLIENT agrees to notify the site owner of the possibility of unavoidable 
alteration and damage to the site. CLIENT further agrees to indemnify, 
defend and hold CONSULTANT harmless against any claims by the 
CLIENT or persons having possession of the site through the Owner 
which are related to such alteration or damage.  

11. Access to Site: CLIENT is responsible for providing legal and 
unencumbered access to site, including securing all necessary site access 
agreements or easements, to the extent necessary for the 
CONSULTANT to carry out his services.  

12. Survival: All of CLIENT’s obligations and liabilities, including but not 
limited to, its indemnification obligations and limitations, and 
CONSULTANT’s rights and remedies with respect thereto, shall survive 
completion of the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  

13. Termination: Either party may terminate the Agreement with or 
without cause upon ten (10) days advance written notice, if the other 
party has not cured or taken reasonable steps to cure the breach giving 
rise to termination within the ten (10) day notice period. If CLIENT 
terminates without cause or if CONSULTANT terminates for cause, 
CLIENT will pay CONSULTANT for all costs incurred, non-cancelable 
commitments, and fees earned to the date of termination and through 
demobilization, including any cancellation charges of vendors and 
subcontractors, as well as demobilization costs. 

112



 

WithersRavenel, Inc. Standard Terms & Conditions Page 2 
 Effective September 25, 2017 

14. Severability: If any provision of this Agreement, or application 
thereof to any person or circumstance, is found to be invalid then such 
provision shall be modified if possible, to fulfill the intent of the parties 
as reflected in the original provision, the remainder of this Agreement, or 
the application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than 
those as to which it is held invalid, shall not be affected thereby, and each 
provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced to the fullest 
extent permitted by the law.  

15. No Waiver: No waiver by either party of any default by the other 
party in the performance of any provision of this Agreement shall 
operate as or be construed as a waiver of any future default, whether 
like or difference in character.  

16. Merger, Amendment: This Agreement constitutes the entire 
Agreement between the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT and all 
integrated negotiations, written and oral understandings between the 
parties are merged herein. This Agreement can be supplemented and/or 
amended only by a written document executed by both the 
CONSULTANT and the CLIENT 

17. Unforeseen Occurrences: If, during the performance of services 
hereunder, any unforeseen hazardous substance, material, element of 
constituent or other unforeseen conditions or occurrences are 
encountered which, affects or may affect the services, the risk involved 
in providing the service, or the recommended scope of services, 
CONSULTANT will promptly notify CLIENT thereof. Subsequent to that 
notification, CONSULTANT may: (a) if practicable, in CONSULTANT’s 
sole judgment and with approval of CLIENT, complete the original scope 
of services in accordance with the procedures originally intended in the 
Proposal; (b) Agree with CLIENT to modify the scope of services and the 
estimate of charges to include study of the previously unforeseen 
conditions or occurrences, such revision to be in writing and signed by 
the parties and incorporated herein; or (c) Terminate the services 
effective on the date of notification pursuant to the terms of the 
Agreement.  

18. Force Majeure: Should completion of any portion of the Agreement 
be delayed for causes beyond the control of or without the fault or 
negligence of CONSULTANT, including force majeure, the reasonable 
time for performance shall be extended for a period at least equal to the 
delay and the parties shall mutually agree on the terms and conditions 
upon which Agreement may be continued. Force majeure includes but is 
not restricted to acts of God, acts or failures of governmental authorities, 
acts of CLIENT’s contractors or agents, fire, floods, epidemics, riots, 
quarantine restrictions, strikes, civil insurrections, freight embargoes, and 
unusually severe weather. 

19. Safety: CONSULTANT is not responsible for site safety or 
compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 
(“OSHA”). Job site safety remains the sole exclusive responsibility of 
CLIENT or CLIENT’s contractors, except with respect to 
CONSULTANT’S own employees. Likewise, CONSULTANT shall have no 
right to direct or stop the work of CLIENT’s contractors, agents or 
employees.  

20. Dispute Resolution/Arbitration: Any claim or other dispute arising 
out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to Arbitration under 
the Federal Arbitration Act. Such claims and disputes shall first be subject 
to non-binding mediation, and if mediation is unsuccessful, shall be 
subject to Arbitration in accordance with the Construction Industry 
Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association currently in 
effect. Any demand for Arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other 
party and with the American Arbitration Association.  

21. Independent Contractor: In carrying out its obligations, 
CONSULTANT shall be acting at all times as an independent contractor 
and not an employee, agent, partner or joint venturer of CLIENT. 
CONSULTANT’s work does not include any supervision or direction of 
the work of other contractors, their employees or agents, and 
CONSULTANT’s presence shall in no way create any liability on behalf 
of CONSULTANT for failure of other contractors, their employees or 
agents to properly or correctly perform their work 

22. Hazardous Substances: CLIENT agrees to advise CONSULTANT 
upon execution of this Agreement of any hazardous substances or any 
condition existing in, on or near the Project Site presenting a potential 
danger to human health, the environment or equipment. By virtue of 
entering into the Agreement or of providing services, CONSULTANT 
does not assume control of, or responsibility for, the Project Site or the 
person in charge of the Project Site or undertake responsibility for 
reporting to any federal, state or local public agencies, any conditions at 
the project site that may present a potential danger to the public, health, 
safety or environment except where required of CONSULTANT by law. 
In the event CONSULTANT encounters hazardous or toxic substances 
or contamination significantly beyond that originally represented by 
CLIENT, CONSULTANT may suspend or terminate the Agreement. 
CLIENT acknowledges that CONSULTANT has no responsibility as a 
generator, treater, storer, or disposer of hazardous or toxic substances 
found or identified at a site and CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless CONSULTANT, from any claim or liability, arising out of 
CONSULTANT's performance of work under the Agreement and made 
or brought against CONSULTANT for any actual or threatened 
environmental pollution or contamination except to the extent that 
CONSULTANT has negligently caused such pollution or contamination. 

23. Choice of Law: The validity, interpretation, and performance of this 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
law of the State of North Carolina, excluding only its conflicts of laws 
principles.  

24. Construction Services: If construction administration and review 
services are requested by the CLIENT, CLIENT agrees that such 
administration, review, or interpretation of construction work or 
documents by CONSULTANT shall not relieve any contractor from 
liability in regard to its duty to comply with the engineering standards for 
the Project, and shall not give rise to a claim against a contractor’s failure 
to hold in accordance with the applicable plans, specifications or 
standards.  

25. Field Representative: If CONSULTANT provides field services or 
construction observation services, the presence of the CONSULTANT's 
field personnel will only be for the purpose of providing observation and 
field testing of specific aspects of the Project. Should a contractor be 
involved in the Project, the CONSULTANT's responsibility does not 
include the supervision or direction of the actual work of any contractor, 
its employees or agents. All contractors should be so advised. 
Contractors should also be informed that neither the presence of the 
CONSULTANT's field representative nor the observation and testing by 
the CONSULTANT shall excuse contractor in any way for defects in 
contractor's work. It is agreed that the CONSULTANT will not be 
responsible for job or site safety on the Project and that the 
CONSULTANT does not have the right to stop the work of any 
contractor.  

26. Submittals: CONSULTANT’s review of shop drawings and other 
submittals is to determine conformity with the design concept only. 
Review of shop drawings and submittals does not include means, 
methods, techniques or procedures of construction, including but not 
limited to, safety requirements. 

113



 

Code Description Rate Code Description Rate Code Description Rate

EPPRI Principal 180$     GMPRI Principal 180$     EVPRI Principal 180$               
EPSTC Senior Technical Consultant 165$     GMSTC Senior Technical Consultant 165$     EVSTC Senior Technical Consultant 165$               
EPPM3 Senior Project Manager 150$     GMSRM Geomatics Senior Manager 150$     EVPP5 Environmental Project Professional V 150$               
EPPM2 Project Manager 135$     GMPM2 Geomatics Project Manager II (SR PM) 130$     EVPP4 Environmental Project Professional IV 140$               
EPPM1 Assistant Project Manager 125$     GMPM1 Geomatics Project Manager I 120$     EVPP3 Environmental Project Professional III 125$               
EPPMC Project Coordinator 90$        GMPP2 Geomatics Project Professional II 125$     EVPP2 Environmental Project Professional II 115$               
EPSP5 Senior Staff Professional 135$     GMPP1 Geomatics Project Professional I 110$     EVPP1 Environmental Project Professional I 105$               
EPSP4 Staff Professional IV 120$     GMCD3 Geomatics CAD III 90$        EVSP3 Environmental Staff Professional III 100$               
EPSP3 Staff Professional III 110$     GMCD2 Geomatics CAD II 80$        EVSP2 Environmental  Staff Professional II 90$                  
EPSP2 Staff Professional II 100$     GMCD1 Geomatics CAD I 60$        EVSP1 Environmental Staff Professional I 80$                  
EPSP1 Staff Professional I 90$        GMGIS Geomatics GIS Specialist 105$     EVET2 Environmental Technician II 75$                  
EPDE3 Senior Designer 120$     GMGT3 Geomatics GIS Tech III 90$        EVET1 Environmental Technician I 65$                  
EPDE2 Designer II 105$     GMGT2 Geomatics GIS Tech II 75$        EVWB4 Senior Biologist/Wetlands Scientist 125$               
EPDE1 Designer I 95$        GMGT1 Geomatics GIS Tech I 60$        EVWB3 Biologist/Wetlands Scientist III 110$               
EPCT3 Senior CAD Technician 100$     GMRS2 Geomatics Remote Sensing Crew (2 Ma 210$     EVWB2 Biologist/Wetlands Scientist II 100$               
EPCT2 CAD Technician II 85$        GMRS1 Geomatics Remote Sensing Crew (1 Ma 140$     EVWB1 Biologist/Wetlands Scientist I 90$                  
EPCT1 CAD Technician I 75$        GMSC3 Geomatics Survey Crew III (3 Man) 180$     EVSHG Senior Hydrogeologist 150$               
EPLP3 Senior Land Planner 110$     GMSC2 Geomatics Survey Crew II (2 Man) 145$     EVPG2 Project Geologist II (Sr. Proj. Geologist) 125$               
EPLP2 Land Planner II 100$     GMSC1 Geomatics Survey Crew I (1 Man) 120$     EVPG1 Project Geologist I 105$               
EPLP1 Land Planner I 90$        GMST4 Geomatics Survey Tech IV 90$        EVSG2 Staff Geologist II 95$                  
EPPLT Planning Technician 80$        GMST3 Geomatics Survey Tech III 80$        EVSG1 Staff Geologist I 85$                  

EPCM3 Senior Construction Manager 130$     GMST2 Geomatics Survey Tech II 65$        

EPCM2 Construction Manager II 120$     GMST1 Geomatics Survey Tech I 35$        Bond Prints (Per Sheet) $1.50

EPCM1 Construction Manager I 110$       Mylar Prints (Per Sheet) $10.00

EPRP3 Senior Resident Project Representative 100$      ADOA3 Office Administrator III 90$        Mileage Per IRS
EPRP2 Resident Project Representative II 90$        ADOA2 Office Administrator II 85$        Subcontractor Fees (Markup) 1.1 - 1.15
EPRP1 Resident Project Representative I 85$        ADOA1 Office Administrator I 80$        Expenses / Reprod. / Permits (Markup) 1.1 - 1.15

ADAA3 Administrative Assistant III 70$        
ADAA2 Administrative Assistant II 60$        
ADAA1 Administrative Assistant I 55$        

EXHIBIT II

Fee & Expense Schedule

Expenses

Shipping / Delivery
UPS / FEDEX -  Project Specific (Distance & Priority)

Administrative

Geomatics Environmental / GeologyEngineering / Planning

Effective February  1, 2017 - Schedule is Subject to Change114



 

Town	of	Weaverville,	North	Carolina	
	

Town	Manager’s	Report	

Selena	D.	Coffey,	MPA,	ICMA‐CM	

 

       

	

January	22,	2018	

1. Website	Update:		The	new	website	online	now.	We	realize	there	will	need	to	be	some	minor	
‘fixes’,	but	it	is	now	in	the	stage	where	we	can	begin	training	department	heads	and	key	staff	on	
how	to	update	their	respective	sections	as	needed.	The	new	site,	although	designed	to	be	
simplistic	for	the	viewer,	has	many	new	features	or	‘bells	and	whistles’.	Some	of	these	include	the	
following:	

 It	is	a	responsive	website,	meaning	that	it	responds	to	mobile	devices,	providing	better	
viewing.	

 Town	weather	widget	on	the	home	page	
 Upcoming	evenings	listed	on	the	home	page	
 Featured	jobs	widget	on	home	page	
 A	six‐month	archive	of	the	Town’s	e‐Focus	newsletter,	offering	the	opportunity	to	view	the	

newsletters	in	a	pdf	lightviewer,	which	doesn’t	require	the	reader	to	download	the	
newsletter.		

 A	Quick	Links	dropdown	menu	providing	answers	to	frequently	asked	questions	
 A	more	user‐friendly	Town	Council	Agendas	and	Minutes	page	One	central	page	for	

important	forms	and	documents	(https://weavervillenc.org/forms‐documents/)	
 A	focus	on	“Working”	in	Weaverville,	which	focuses	on	our	local	businesses	and	industries	
 Overall,	an	easier	site	for	our	Town	staff	to	navigate	and	upload	information	for	the	viewer	

	
2. Citizens	Academy:		The	first	session	of	the	2018	Citizens	Academy	will	be	Thursday,	January	18,	

which	will	be	focused	on	an	overview	of	town	government	and	finance	and	budget.	
	

3. Budget	Calendar:		Attached	you	will	find	a	draft	budget	calendar	for	a	brief	discussion	during	the	
meeting.	

	
4. N.C.	City‐County	Managers	Association	Seminar:		I	will	be	in	Winston	Salem	for	the	N.C.	City‐

County	Managers	Association	seminar	Wednesday,	January	31	–	February	2,	2018.	I	will	be	
available	by	phone,	email	or	text	during	my	absence.	

	
5. Retreat:		As	a	reminder,	the	Council	Retreat	is	scheduled	for	Saturday,	February	3	at	9am.	It	will	

be	held	in	Council	Chambers	at	Town	Hall.	Lunch	will	be	provided	to	Council	and	staff	in	
attendance.	

	
6. RFPs	for	Annual	Audit:		Pursuant	to	your	budget	discussions,	I	am	beginning	the	process	for	

receiving	proposals	for	the	Town’s	annual	audit.	I	will	be	presenting	the	proposals	to	Council	at	
an	upcoming	meeting.	

	

115



D R A F T 
Town	of	Weaverville	
Budget	Calendar	
FY	2018‐2019	

	

Budget	Activity	 Date/Time/Location	 Responsible	Party	

Operational	Budget	Requests	&	CIP	Requests	Due	to	
Manager	

March	2,	2018	  Department	Heads	

Budget	Workshop	#1	–	Budget	Preview	
(Regular	Workshop)	

March	13,	2018	
6:00pm	
Town	Hall	

 Town	Council	
 Town	Manager	
 Department	Heads	

Manager’s	Budget	Review,	Analysis	&	Department	
Head	Meetings	in	Development	of	Proposed	Budget	

March	13	–	April	23,	2018	  Town	Manager	
 Department	Heads	

Initial	Draft	Budget	Presentation	
Set	Public	Hearing	on	Budget	
(Regular	Town	Council	Meeting)	

April	23,	2018	
7:00pm	
Town	Hall	

 Town	Council	
 Town	Manager	
 Town	Clerk	

Budget	Workshop	#2		 TBD	April	‐	May	  Town	Council	
 Town	Manager	
 Department	Heads	

Advertise	Public	Hearing	on	Budget	 	  Town	Clerk	
	

Public	Hearing	on	Budget	
(Regular	Town	Council	Meeting)	

May	21,	2018	
7:00pm	
Town	Hall	

 Town	Council	
 Town	Manager	
	

Budget	Workshop	#3		 TBD	April	‐	May	  Town	Council	
 Town	Manager	
 Department	Heads	

Budget	Workshop	#4	(optional)	 TBD	May	‐	June	  Town	Council	
 Town	Manager	
 Department	Heads	

Town	Council’s	Adoption	of	Budget	/	Budget	
Ordinance	

June	18,	2018	
7:00pm	
Town	Hall	

 Town	Council	
 Town	Manager	
 Town	Clerk	
	

	

116


	January 22 2018 Town Council Agenda
	Notice of Public Hearing Cancellation - TC 1.22.18
	Public Hearing - Weaverville Condos - January 2018
	Proposed Zoning Map Amendment 1.22.18.pdf
	Rezoning, Weaverville Condos
	Map Amendment - Weaverville Condos
	Public Notice - Town Council - Weaverville Condos Rezoning - 1.22.18


	December 12 2017 - Town Council Workshop 1 - with jj revision (002)
	December 18, 2017 Town Council Minutes - with jj revisions
	Monthly Tax Report - January 2018
	Tax Releases and Refunds - January 2018
	Reems Creek Cottage - Water Retention Pond
	Reems Creek Cottage - Sales Office Property
	Henderson

	Set PH for Initial Reveiw by Town Council 1.22.18
	Initial Review by Town Council 1.22.18
	Initial Review by Town Council
	Sec._36_358.___Initial_review_by_the_town_council.

	Greenwood Park Phase 1 Final Plat
	Final Plat - Greenwood Park Phase 1 1.22.18
	Greenwood Park Phase 1 Major Subdivision Final Plat
	Greenwood Park Phase 1 Final Plat
	GWP COVENANTS
	Exhibit A Greenwood Park Covenants
	Al Dorf Drive Pavement Rpt J17-11986-01 Dec 2017
	Greenwood Park Phase 1 Sewer Easement

	The Hamlet Phase 1 Final Plat
	Proposed Zoning Map Amendment 1.22.18
	Map Amendment - Weaverville Condos 1.22.18
	Rezoning, Weaverville Condos
	Map Amendment - Weaverville Condos
	Ordinance Amending Zoning Map - January 2018
	Public Notice - Town Council - Weaverville Condos Rezoning - 1.22.18

	The Hamlet Phase 1, a Portion of Reems Creek Village Major Subdivision Final Plat
	The Hamlet Phase 1 Final Plat
	Supplemental Declaration and Road Maintenance Agreement 4792-538 6-17-10
	RCV Sec 3 110-161
	RCV Sec 2 110-162

	Action on Proposed Zoning Map Amendment - Wvl Condos - 1.22.18
	Map Amendment - Weaverville Condos 1.22.18
	Rezoning, Weaverville Condos
	Map Amendment - Weaverville Condos
	Ordinance Amending Zoning Map - January 2018

	Planning Dept Quarterly Report
	Agenda Item Summary-Quarterly Dept Report
	Zoning Permit Report - Q4, 2017
	Zoning Permit Report - 2017

	Finance Quarterly Report
	Agenda Item Summary-Quarterly Dept Report
	Finance Dept Quarterly Report 12-31-17

	Budget Amendment Agenda Item
	Agenda Item Summary- Budget Amendment
	Budget Amendment

	Monticello Rd Condo Waterline Extension Agenda Item 1-12-18
	WeavervilleCondoProjectbehind WM DTree extension letter01112018
	SKMBT_C224e18011114370

	WRM Prelim Engineering Report Agenda Item
	Agenda Item Summary-Withers Ravenel Martin Engineering Report Agreement
	Weaverville Water System PER Agreement
	Weaverville Water System PER Agreement page 2
	Weaverville Water System PER Agreement
	scan3
	Weaverville Water System PER Agreement
	D. Client Responsibilities
	E. Compensation for Services
	F. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	G. Timeline for Services

	Weaverville signature
	Exhibit-I_Standard-Terms-and-Conditions
	2017-Master-Fee-Schedule



	Town Managers Report
	TM Report Jan 22 2018
	FY 18-19 Budget Calendar




